
.  

 AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE SANTA FE SPRINGS 

HOUSING SUCCESSOR  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  

AND CITY COUNCIL 

April 6, 2021 
6:00 P.M. 

VIA TELECONFERENCE 

Jay Sarno, Councilmember 
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember 

Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember 
Annette Rodriguez, Mayor Pro Tem 

John M. Mora, Mayor  

****GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20**** 
**REGARDING CORONAVIRUS COVID-19** 

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in 
California as a result of the threat of COVID-19. The Governor has issued Executive 
Orders that temporarily suspend requirements of the Brown Act, including allowing the 
City Council to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make public meetings 
accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public.  Please 
be advised that, until further notice, City Council meetings will be held by teleconference.  
City Hall, including Council Chambers, is closed to the public. 

You may attend the City Council meeting telephonically or electronically using the 
following means: 

Electronically using Zoom: Go to Zoom.us and click on “Join A Meeting” or use the 
following link: 
https://zoom.us/j/521620472?pwd=U3cyK1RuKzY1ekVGZFdKQXNZVzh4Zz09 
Zoom Meeting ID: 521620472 Password: 659847 

Telephonically: Dial: 888-475-4499 Meeting ID: 521620472 

Public Participation: You may submit comments in writing by sending them to the City 
Clerk at cityclerk@santafesprings.org. All written comments received by 12:00 p.m. the 
day of the City Council meeting will be distributed to the City Council and made a part of 
the official record of the meeting. You may contact the City Clerk’s Office at (562) 868-
0511 ext. 7314 with any questions. 

https://zoom.us/j/521620472?pwd=U3cyK1RuKzY1ekVGZFdKQXNZVzh4Zz09
mailto:cityclerk@santafesprings.org


City of Santa Fe Springs 
   Regular Meetings April 6, 2021 

2 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL
Jay Sarno, Councilmember
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember
Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember
Annette Rodriguez, Mayor Pro Tem
John M. Mora, Mayor

3. INVOCATION

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS This is the time when comments may be made by citizens on
matters under the jurisdiction of the City Council, on the agenda and not on the agenda.
Each citizen is limited to three (3) minutes.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR 
6. CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the Housing
Successor.

Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor Meeting (City Clerk) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve the minutes as submitted.

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
7. CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the
Successor Agency.

Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Successor Agency Meeting (City Clerk) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve the minutes as submitted.

CITY COUNCIL 
8. CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the City
Council.

a. Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:

• Approve the minutes as submitted.



City of Santa Fe Springs 
   Regular Meetings April 6, 2021 

3 

b. Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal & Replacement – Award of
Contract (Public Works)
Recommendation:

• Add the Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal and
Replacement to the Capital Improvement Plan;

• Appropriate $276,000 from the Utility Users Tax (UUT) Fund to Florence
Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal and Replacement Project;

• Accept the bids; and
• Award a contract to Cora Constructors, Inc., of Palm Desert, California, in

the amount of $210,700.00.

PUBLIC HEARING 
9. Resolution No. 9710 - Approval of Use of Community Development Block Grant Funds

(CDBG) for the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund (City Manager)
Recommendation: 

• Open the Public Hearing and hear from anyone wishing to speak on this
matter;

• Approve the FY 2021/2022 CDBG unallocated funds to the CDBG
Revolving Grant Fund as described in the body of this report;

• Adopt Resolution No. 9710; and
• Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement to transfer CDBG

Funds to the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund for later use in Santa Fe
Springs CDBG eligible projects.

NEW BUSINESS 
10. Approval of Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of Santa

Fe Springs and The Whole Child (TWC) for use of modular building located at the Gus
Velasco Neighborhood Center (Community Services)

Recommendation: 
• Approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the

City of Santa Fe Springs and The Whole Child to extend the lease term by
one year for use of the modular building located at the Gus Velasco
Neighborhood Center.

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign Amendment Number Three to
Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and the Whole
Child.

11. Approval of Amendments to Agreements between City of Santa Fe Springs and Options
for Learning and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD) (Community Services)

Recommendation: 
• Approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the

City of Santa Fe Springs and Options for Learning at the Los Nietos
Childcare Center.

• Approve Amendment Number One to Premises Use Agreement between
City of Santa Fe Springs and Options for Learning at Lakeview Elementary
School.



City of Santa Fe Springs 
   Regular Meetings April 6, 2021 

4 

• Approve Amendment Number One to Agreement between the City of
Santa Fe Springs and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD).

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign amendments with Options for
Learning and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD).

12. Resolution No. 9709 – Request for Parking Restrictions during Certain Hours on Altamar
Place West of Dice Road (Public Works)

Recommendation: 
• Approve Resolution No. 9709 to implement a parking restriction between

the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. be implemented on both sides of
Altamar Place from Dice Road to the westerly terminus along with a tow-
away provision for violators.

13. On-Call Professional Engineering Services – Award of Contract  (Public Works)
Recommendation: 

• Accept the proposals; and
• Award a contract to each of the twenty-one engineering consulting firms

listed below for the On-Call Professional Engineering Services for various
capital improvement projects.

14. Acceptance of State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) Funds for the Purchase
of Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) for the Department of Fire-Rescue (Fire)

Recommendation: 
• Accept 2018 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) funds in

the amount of $30,045.28 and authorize the purchase of seven (7) GETAC
Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) and associated equipment from
DuraTech USA, Inc.

15. Tree Maintenance Services – Award of Contract (Public Works)
Recommendation: 

• Accept the proposals;
• Award a contract to West Coast Arborists, Inc. from Anaheim, California

for Tree Maintenance Services.

COUNCILMEMBER REQUESTED ITEM 
16. Santa Fe High Graduating Banner Support (City Manager)

Recommendation: 
• Provide direction on the establishment of a Santa Fe High Graduation

Banner Support.

17. CITY MANAGER’S AND EXECUTIVE TEAM REPORTS

18. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclaiming April 30, 2021 as “National Arbor Day” (Public Works)
b. Proclaiming the Month of April 2021 as “DMV/Donate Life Month” (City

Manager)



City of Santa Fe Springs 
   Regular Meetings April 6, 2021 

5 

19. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS

20. COUNCIL COMMENTS

CLOSED SESSION
21. THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES

(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957)
Consultation with: Fire Chief, Police Chief and Captain, Director of Police Services, City
Attorney

CLOSED SESSION
22. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION

(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1))
Name of case: City of Signal Hill v. Central Basin Municipal Water District, Los Angeles
Superior Court, Case No. 19STCP03882.

CLOSED SESSION
23. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.6)
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager, Director of Finance, Human
Resources Manager, City Attorney, Labor Negotiator.
Employee Organizations:  Santa Fe Springs City Employees’ Association and Santa Fe
Springs Firefighters’ Association

CLOSED SESSION
24. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.6)
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager, City Attorney, Labor Negotiator
Employee Organization: Santa Fe Springs Executive, Management and Confidential
Employees’ Association

25. CLOSED SESSION REPORT

26. ADJOURNMENT

Americans with Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the ADA, if you need special assistance to participate 
in a City meeting or other services offered by this City, please contact the City Clerk’s Office.  Notification 
of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring 
that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 

I, Janet Martinez, City Clerk for the City of Santa Fe Springs, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury under 
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing agenda was posted at the following locations; city’s 
website at www.santafesprings.org; and the Town Center Plaza (Kiosk), 11740 Telegraph Road, not less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

April 1, 2021 
Janet Martinez, CMC, City Clerk Date Posted 

http://www.santafesprings.org/


FOR ITEM NO. 6 
PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 8A 



FOR ITEM NO. 7 
PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 8A 



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Janet Martinez Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
  City Clerk 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting 

 

BACKGROUND 
Staff has prepared minutes for the following meeting: 

• March 2, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

Staff hereby submits the minutes for Council’s approval. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
1. March 2, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
• Approve the minutes as submitted.

ITEM NO. 8A



APPROVED:  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE  
CITY COUNCIL  

 
March 2, 2021 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Mora called the meeting to order via teleconference at 6:07 p.m. 

 
2. ROLL CALL                

Members present: Councilmembers/Directors: Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Mayor Pro 
Tem/Vice Chair Rodriguez and Mayor/Chair Mora. 
 
Members absent: None. 
 

3. INVOCATION 
Council Member Sarno led the invocation.  

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Youth Leadership led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no speakers that spoke under public comments.  
 

HOUSING SUCCESSOR 
PUBLIC HEARING  

6. Resolutions approving Purchase and Sale Agreements with the Richman Group of 
California Development Company, LLC. And TWC Housing, LLC. For portions of the 
property located at 13231 Lakeland Road, at the northwest corner of Laurel Avenue and 
Lakeland Road (Planning) 

Recommendation:  
• Approve and Authorize the Executive Director to execute a Purchase and 

Sale Agreement and related documents with The Richman Group of 
California Development Company, for a portion of the ±3.94-acre property 
located at 13231 Lakeland Road (APN: 8011-012-902), for the development 
of affordable family and special needs rental housing, with a focus on 
providing a preference in rental to veterans; and 

• Approve and Authorize the Executive Director to execute a Purchase and 
Sale Agreement and related documents with TWC Housing LLC, for a 
portion of the ±3.94-acre property located at 13231 Lakeland Road (APN: 
8011-012-902), for the development of Interim affordable housing for 
families and veterans families experiencing homelessness; and 

• Find that the approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreements is exempt 
from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
because it does not constitute approval of a “Project,” as defined by the 
Public Resource Code sections 21065 and 21080 and of CEQA sections 



Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 2 
 

15352 and 15378. 
• Approve the Section 33433 Report; and 
• Adopt Resolution No. HS-2021-001, approving the Purchase and Sale 

Agreement with The Richman Group of California Development Company; 
and 

• Adopt Resolution No. HS-2021-002, approving the Purchase and Sale 
Agreement with TWC Housing LLC. 

 
Deputy City Attorney Russell Hildebrand provided a presentation on Item No. 6. 
 
Mayor Mora opened the public hearing at 6:32 p.m. 
 
There were no speakers for Item No. 6. 
 
Mayor Mora closed the hearing at 6:32 p.m. 
 

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Council Member Trujillo, 
to approve and Authorize the Executive Director to execute a Purchase and Sale 
Agreement and related documents with The Richman Group of California 
Development Company, for a portion of the ±3.94-acre property located at 13231 
Lakeland Road (APN: 8011-012-902), for the development of affordable family and 
special needs rental housing, with a focus on providing a preference in rental to 
veterans; and approve and Authorize the Executive Director to execute a Purchase 
and Sale Agreement and related documents with TWC Housing LLC, for a portion 
of the ±3.94-acre property located at 13231 Lakeland Road (APN: 8011-012-902), 
for the development of Interim affordable housing for families and veterans families 
experiencing homelessness; and, find that the approval of the Purchase and Sale 
Agreements is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) because it does not constitute approval of a “Project,” as 
defined by the Public Resource Code sections 21065 and 21080 and of CEQA 
sections 15352 and 15378 and the Section 33433 Report; and adopt Resolution 
No. HS-2021-001, approving the Purchase and Sale Agreement with the Richman 
Group of California Development Company; and adopt Resolution No. HS-2021-
002, approving the Purchase and Sale Agreement with TWC Housing LLC by the 
following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
No items were considered under the Housing Successor Agenda. 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

8. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and 

vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the City 



Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 3 
 

Council. 
 

a. Minutes of the January 18, 2021 Special City Council Meeting (City Clerk) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve the minutes as submitted.  
 

b. General Motion to Waive Full Reading and Read Ordinance by Title Only Pursuant 
to California Government Code Section 36934 (City Clerk) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve a general motion to waive full reading and read Ordinance titles 
only, pursuant to California Government Code Section 36934.  

 
c. Resolution No. 9705 – Ordering Engineer’s Report for Fiscal Year 2021/22 in 

Conjunction with the Annual Levy of Assessments for Street Lighting District No. 
1 (Public Works) 
Recommendation:  

• Adopt Resolution No. 9705, ordering the preparation of the Engineer’s 
Report for Fiscal Year 2021/22 in conjunction with the annual levy of 
assessments for Street Lighting District No. 1.  

 
d. Resolution No. 9706 – Ordering Engineer’s Report for Fiscal Year 2021/22 in 

Conjunction with the Annual Levy of Assessments for Heritage Springs 
Assessment District No.  No. 2001-01 (Hawkins Street and Palm Drive) (Public 
Works) 
Recommendation:  

• Adopt Resolution No. 9706, ordering the preparation of the Engineer’s 
Report for Fiscal Year 2021/22 in conjunction with the annual levy of 
assessments for Heritage Springs Assessment District No. 2001-01 
(Hawkins Street and Palm Drive). 

 
e. A Resolution of the City Council Reaffirming the Existence of a Local Emergency 

Due to the Threat of COVID-19 (pursuant to Government Code section 8630) (City 
Attorney) 
Recommendation:  

• Adopt Resolution No. 9707: 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA FE 
SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA, REAFFIRMING THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL 
EMERGENCY DUE TO THE THREAT OF COVID-19. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Sarno, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez 
to approve the consent agenda, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING 
9. Annual Weed Abatement Program (City Clerk/Planning) 

Recommendation:  



Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 4 
 

• Conduct a Public Hearing on Weed Abatement and direct the Los Angeles 
County Agricultural Commissioner/Weights & Measures to abate the 
nuisance by having weeds, rubbish, and refuse removed. 

 
City Clerk, Janet Martinez provided a brief presentation on Item No. 9.  
 
Mayor Mora opened the public hearing at 6:34 p.m. 
 
There were no speakers for Item No. 9.  
 
Mayor Mora closed the public hearing at 6:34 p.m. 
 

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Council Member Sarno to 
direct the Los Angeles County Agricultural Commissioner/Weights & Measures to 
abate the nuisance by having weeds, rubbish, and refuse removed, by the 
following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE 
10. Introduction of Ordinance No. 1117 – An Ordinance adding Chapter 40 to Title III of the 

of the Santa Fe Springs Municipal Code Implementing Electronic Filing of Campaign 
Disclosure Statements and Statements of Economic Interest (City Clerk) 

Recommendation:  
• Introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 1117.  

 
City Clerk, Janet Martinez provided a brief presentation on Item No. 10.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Sarno seconded by Council Member Trujillo to 
introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 1117, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
11. Authorize the Purchase of Replacement Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) for the Santa 

Fe Springs Policing Team (Police Services) 
Recommendation:  

• Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to issue the purchase 
order to facilitate the procurement of Mobile Data Computers from CDCE 
Incorporated in an amount not to exceed $188,624; and 

• Appropriate $28,624 from the General Fund reserves to the Non-
Recurring Police Services activity to adjust the budgeted funds available 
for FY 2020-21. 

 
Director of Police Services, Dino Torres provided a brief presentation on Item No. 11.  
 



Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 5 
 

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Council Member Trujillo 
to authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to issue the purchase order to 
facilitate the procurement of Mobile Data Computers from CDCE Incorporated in 
an amount not to exceed $188,624; and, appropriate $28,624 from the General 
Fund reserves to the Non-Recurring Police Services activity to adjust the budgeted 
funds available for FY 2020-21. by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
12. Custodial Services Maintenance Agreement – Approve One Year Extension (Public 

Works) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve Contract Amendment Number Four with EE Building 
Maintenance to extend the term of agreement for one year with a 5% 
increase to the contract; and 

• Authorize the Director of Public Works to execute Contract Amendment 
Number Four.  

 
Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete provided a brief presentation on Item no. 12. He stated 
that EE Building Maintenance received a 5% CPI increase to cover the cost of supplies in 
January of last year, but also had a contract change reduction of $3300 prior to the 5% CPI 
increase. He also stated that the scope of work has not decreased, but it has changed due to 
the pandemic.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Sarno, seconded by Council Member Zamora, 
to direct the Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete to discuss a 2.5% increase with 
EE Building Maintenance to extend the term of agreement for one year effective 
June 1st, 2021, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 

13. Aquatic Center Roof Replacement – Award of Contract (Public Works) 
Recommendation:  

• Appropriate an additional $78,000.00 from the Utility Users Tax (UUT) 
Capital Improvement Fund to the Aquatic Center Roof Replacement 
Project; 

• Accept the bids; and 
• Award a contract to Letner Roofing Company, of Orange, California, in the 

amount of $228,000.00. 
 
Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete provided a brief presentation on Item No. 13.  
 

It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez, seconded by Council Member 
Zamora, to appropriate an additional $78,000.00 from the Utility Users Tax (UUT) 
Capital Improvement Fund to the Aquatic Center Roof Replacement Project; 



Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 6 
 

accept the bids, and award a contract to Letner Roofing Company, of Orange, 
California, in the amount of $228,000.00, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
14. Adopt Resolution No. 9708 Appointing the Director of Finance & Administrative Services 

as the Plan Administrator for the 457 Deferred Compensation Plan (Finance)  
Recommendation:  

• Adopt Resolution No. 9708. 
 
Director of Finance, Travis Hickey provided a brief presentation on Item No. 14.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Sarno, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez, 
to adopt Resolution No. 9708, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
15. Modification of Job Specification Title and Salary Adjustment for Human Resources 

Assistant (Finance) 
Recommendation:  

• Approve the proposed job specification, title, and salary modifications for 
the Human Resources Assistant position. 

 
Director of Finance, Travis Hickey provided a brief presentation on Item No. 15.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Rodriguez, to approve the proposed job specification, title, and salary 
modifications for the Human Resources Assistant position, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 
Nayes: None 

 Absent: None 
 
16. Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Midyear Budget Review and Modifications (Finance) 

Recommendation:  
• Approve the proposed revenue and expenditure adjustments as detailed 

in Attachments A through C. 
 
Director of Finance, Travis Hickey provided a brief presentation on Item No. 16. 
 
Council Member Zamora requested a report that listed savings from reimbursements received 
over the past few years.  
 

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Council Member Sarno, 
to approve the proposed revenue and expenditure adjustments as detailed in 
Attachments A through C, by the following vote: 
Ayes:  Sarno, Trujillo, Zamora, Rodríguez, Mora 



Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 7 
 

Nayes: None 
 Absent: None 
 
17. CITY MANAGER AND EXECUTIVE TEAM REPORTS 

• City Manager, Raymond R. Cruz spoke about attending the virtual swearing-in 
ceremony for Lieutenant Aaron Ruiz for Whittier Police Department. 

• Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete spoke about complaints received related to the 
trash that was by the 605 off-ramp near Telegraph Road. He stated that CalTrans 
advised him that typically the individuals that clean up the freeway are court mandated 
individuals that are assigned to complete community services by cleaning up the 
freeways. However, due to COVID-19 that was placed on hold. Therefore, the 
Municipal Services Manager, Kevin Periman communicated with CalTrans Manager 
and scheduled a cleanup and graffiti removal by the off-ramp. He also spoke about 
the Metro project off the 605 freeway. Lastly, he stated he requested a presentation 
from CalTrans to provide the City an update on the project.  

• Senior Management Analyst, Maribel Garcia provided a brief presentation on the 
restaurant grant program.  

• Director of Planning, Wayne Morrell spoke about the third general plan workshop. 
• Director of Police Services, Dino Torres spoke about the Every 15 Minute Program, 

he noted that last year students were unable to be involved with the program due to 
COVID-19 restrictions. He stated that Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez suggested to have 
the schools demonstrate previous years recording; he expressed how he related that 
message to the schools. The schools agreed to share previous recordings via 
YouTube.  

• Fire Chief, Brent Hayward congratulated Captain Ruiz. He also provided a brief report 
on the current COVID-19 cases within Los Angeles County.  

• Director of Finance and Administrative Services, Travis Hickey announced that on 
February 16-18, 2021 the California Social Municipal Finance Officers had their virtual 
annual conference which provided very informational sessions that covered a variety 
of topics, which included PERS information.  

• Director of Community Services, Maricela Balderas spoke about the following: 1) City 
partnering with County of Los Angeles to offer COVID-19 testing, final day of testing 
would be Saturday, March 6, 2021; 2) She also spoke about the request of Mayor 
Mora, the City will be offering free COVID-19 Anti-body testing, which is covered under 
the CARES ACT at Lake Center Athletic Park; 3) She spoke about the possibility of 
having a modified aquatics program this Summer; 4) Last, she provided an update on 
Youth Sports and the County’s guidelines, and expressed how the City will be 
collaborating with all organizations for the City to offer a safe place to play.  
 

18. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS 
Council Member Trujillo appointed Dolores Duran to the Senior Advisory Committee.  
Mayor Mora appointed Juliana Casillas to the Youth Leadership Committee.  



Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 8 
 

 
19. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilmember Sarno spoke about the year anniversary of the pandemic, expressed how 
a lot of people have been affected and how the numbers are going down. He 
congratulated Captain Ruiz on his promotion.   
 
Councilmember Trujillo spoke about the pandemic; stated how the children are the 
individuals that suffered the most. She expressed how she hopes that everyone can get 
back to normal activities.  She also congratulated Captain Ruiz on his promotion. Lastly, 
she spoke about the COVID-19 vaccine and the availability at CVS locations.   
 
Councilmember Zamora expressed how he was glad to see the flag salute added back 
to the agenda, giving the Youth Leadership members an opportunity to participate. He 
also congratulated Captain Ruiz for his promotion. He acknowledged those that have 
been able to obtain the COVID-19 vaccine. He announced that the state has made the 
vaccine available for educators and children with special needs. Lastly, he thanked staff 
for the reports.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez thanked all Directors for their presentations and congratulated 
Captain Ruiz on his promotion. She also expressed how the Council is supportive to all 
students. Lastly, she thanked all fire fighters and first responders for assisting with the 
Fire by City of Compton.  
 
Mayor Mora also agreed with the rest of the Council’s comments and also acknowledged 
staff. He congratulated Captain Ruiz on his promotion. Lastly, he stated the meeting will 
be closing in memory of David Quintero and Cesar Marquez.  
 
CLOSED SESSION  

20. THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES 
(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957) 
Consultation with: Fire Chief, Police Chief and Captain, Director of Police Services, City 
Attorney 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

21. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT  
(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1)) 
TITLE: City Manager Evaluation 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

22. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) 
Name of case: City of Santa Fe Springs v. SFS Hospitality, LLC, Case No. 20STCV33264 

 
Mayor Mora recessed the meeting at 8:26 p.m. 

 



Minutes of the March 2, 2021 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings  
 

 

Page 9 
 

Mayor Mora reconvened the meeting at 10:06 p.m. 
 

23. CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
City Attorney, Ivy M. Tsai provided a report on Closed Session Items: Direction was given 
to staff and no reportable action was taken. 
 

24. ADJOURNMENT 
 Mayor Mora adjourned the meeting at 10:06 p.m. in memory of David Quintero and Cesar 

Marquez.  
  
  _____________________ 
  John M. Mora 
  Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_____________________     
Janet Martinez  Date 
City Clerk 

 
 



City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal & Replacement – Award of 
Contract 

 
 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
The Florence Avenue underpass east of Bloomfield Avenue and west of Shoemaker 
Avenue requires its storm pumps to be removed and replaced.  The existing storm 
pumps were installed in 1968. Though the pumps are operational, the pumps have 
exceeded their service life and replacement parts have become obsolete and non-
existent in the event of an unforeseen failure. 

A total of five bids were received and opened on March 9, 2021. City staff reviewed 
the proposals and determined that four of the bid proposals comply with the project 
specifications*. The bid from Bonadiman Water, Inc., did not include a signed 
addendum; therefore, is deemed non-responsive. The low bidder for the project was 
Cora Constructors, Inc., of Palm Desert, California, with a bid totaling $210,700.00. 
Below are the bids submitted from each bidder: 

COMPANY COST 
1. Cora Constructors, Inc. $210,700.00 
2. Tharsos, Inc. $224,000.00 
3. 316 Engineering and Construction, Inc. $228,650.00 
4. MMC, Inc. $394,000.00 
5. Bonadiman Water, Inc. Non-Responsive* 

LEGAL REVIEW  
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The total estimated cost for the Project is $276,000.  An appropriation of $276,000 is 
necessary to complete the funding to the Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump 
Replacement project from the Utility Users Tax (UUT) Capital Improvement Fund. 

RECOMMENDATION 
• Add the Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal and Replacement to 

the Capital Improvement Plan;
• Appropriate $276,000 from the Utility Users Tax (UUT) Fund to Florence Avenue 

Underpass Storm Pump Removal and Replacement Project;
• Accept the bids; and
• Award a contract to Cora Constructors, Inc., of Palm Desert, California, in the 

amount of $210,700.00.

ITEM NO. 8B



Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump  
Removal & Replacement-Award of Contract Page 2 of 2 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

The total project cost breakdown is as follows: 

ITEM BUDGET 
Construction $ 210,700 
Engineering  $ 17,000 
Inspection $ 17,000 
Contingency $ 31,300 
Total Project Cost: $ 276,000 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 
Replacement of the existing pumps at the Florence Avenue Underpass will provide 
improved street drainage and ensure reliable and efficient operation. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment: 
Attachment No. 1:  Agreement 



2021-01 Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal & Replacement 

D-1

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

FOR 

FLORENCE AVENUE UNDERPASS STORM PUMP 
REMOVAL & REPLACEMENT 

IN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

This Contract Agreement is made and entered into the above-stated project this 6th day of April. 
2021, BY AND BETWEEN the City of Santa Fe Springs, as AGENCY, and Cora Constructors, 
Inc., as CONTRACTOR in the amount of $210,700.00. 

WITNESSETH that AGENCY and CONTRACTOR have mutually agreed as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

The contract documents for the aforesaid project shall consist of the Notice Inviting Sealed Bids, 
Instructions to Bidders, Proposal, General Specifications, Standard Specifications, Special 
Provisions, Plans, and all referenced specifications, details, standard drawings, CDBG contract 
provisions and forms, and appendices; together with this Contract Agreement and all required 
bonds, insurance certificates, permits, notices, and affidavits; and also including any and all 
addenda or supplemental agreements clarifying, or extending the work contemplated as may be 
required to ensure its completion in an acceptable manner.  All of the provisions of said contract 
documents are made a part hereof as though fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE II 

For and in consideration of the payments and agreements to be made and performed by AGENCY, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish all materials and perform all work required for the above-stated 
project, and to fulfill all other obligations as set forth in the aforesaid contract documents. 



2021-01 Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal & Replacement 

D-2

ARTICLE III 

CONTRACTOR agrees to receive and accept the prices set forth in the Proposal as full 
compensation for furnishing all materials, performing all work, and fulfilling all obligations 
hereunder.  Said compensation shall cover all expenses, losses, damages, and consequences arising 
out of the nature of the work during its progress or prior to its acceptance including those for well 
and faithfully completing the work and the whole thereof in the manner and time specified in the 
aforesaid contract documents; and also including those arising from actions of the elements, 
unforeseen difficulties or obstructions encountered in the prosecution of the work, suspension or 
discontinuance of the work, and all other unknowns or risks of any description connected with the 
work. 

ARTICLE IV 

AGENCY hereby promises and agrees to employ, and does hereby employ, CONTRACTOR to 
provide the materials, do the work and fulfill the obligations according to the terms and conditions 
herein contained and referred to, for the prices aforesaid, and hereby contracts to pay the same at 
the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions set forth in the contract documents. No work or 
portion of the work shall be paid for until it is approved for payment by the City Engineer.  Payment 
made for completed portions of the work shall not constitute final acceptance of those portions or 
of the completed project. 

ARTICLE V 

CONTRACTOR acknowledges the provisions of the State Labor Code requiring every employer 
to be insured against liability for Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code and certifies compliance with such provisions. 
Contractor further acknowledges the provisions of the State Labor Code requiring every employer 
to pay at least the minimum prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft classification or type 
of workman needed to execute this contract as determined by the Director of Labor Relations of 
the State of California.  The Contractor is required to pay the higher of either the State or Federal 
Wages. 

ARTICLE VI 

Except as to the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the AGENCY and 
notwithstanding the existence of insurance coverage required of CONTRACTOR pursuant to this 
contract, CONTRACTOR shall save, keep defend, indemnify, hold free and harmless AGENCY, 
its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all damages to 
property or injuries to or death of any person or persons, and shall defend, indemnify, save and 
hold harmless AGENCY, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers from any and all 
claims, demands, suits, actions or proceedings of any kind or nature, including, but not by way of 
limitation, all civil claims, workers’ compensation claims, and all other claims resulting from or 



2021-01 Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal & Replacement 

D-3

arising out of the acts, errors or omissions of CONTRACTOR, its employees and/or authorized 
subcontractors, whether intentional or negligent, in the performance of this Agreement. 

This indemnification provision is independent of and shall not in any way be limited by the 
Insurance Requirements of this Agreement.  AGENCY approval of the Insurance contracts 
required by this Agreement does not in any way relieve the CONTRACTOR from liability under 
this section.  

AGENCY shall notify CONTRACTOR of the receipt of any third party claim related to this 
Agreement within seven (7) business days of receipt.  The City is entitled to recover its reasonable 
costs incurred in providing the notification. (Pubic Contracts Code Section 9201) 

ARTICLE VII 

AGENCY shall comply with Pub Cont. Code §20104.50 as follows: 

20104.50. 
(a) (1) It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting this section to require all local governments

to pay their contractors on time so that these contractors can meet their own obligations. In 
requiring prompt payment by all local governments, the Legislature hereby finds and declares that 
the prompt payment of outstanding receipts is not merely a municipal affair, but is, instead, a 
matter of statewide concern. 

(2) It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting this article to fully occupy the field of public policy
relating to the prompt payment of local governments’ outstanding receipts. The Legislature finds
and declares that all government officials, including those in local government, must set a standard
of prompt payment that any business in the private sector which may contract for services should
look towards for guidance.

(b) Any local agency which fails to make any progress payment within 30 days after receipt of an
undisputed and properly submitted payment request from a contractor on a construction contract
shall pay interest to the contractor equivalent to the legal rate set forth in subdivision (a) of Section
685.010 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

(c) Upon receipt of a payment request, each local agency shall act in accordance with both of the
following:

(1) Each payment request shall be reviewed by the local agency as soon as practicable after receipt
for the purpose of determining that the payment request is a proper payment request.

(2) Any payment request determined not to be a proper payment request suitable for payment shall
be returned to the contractor as soon as practicable, but not later than seven days, after receipt. A
request returned pursuant to this paragraph shall be accompanied by a document setting forth in
writing the reasons why the payment request is not proper.



2021-01 Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal & Replacement 

D-4

(d) The number of days available to a local agency to make a payment without incurring interest
pursuant to this section shall be reduced by the number of days by which a local agency exceeds
the seven-day return requirement set forth in paragraph (2) of subdivision (c).

(e) For purposes of this article:

(1) A “local agency” includes, but is not limited to, a city, including a charter city, a county, and a
city and county, and is any public entity subject to this part.

(2) A “progress payment” includes all payments due contractors, except that portion of the final
payment designated by the contract as retention earnings.

(3) A payment request shall be considered properly executed if funds are available for payment of
the payment request, and payment is not delayed due to an audit inquiry by the financial officer of
the local agency.

(f) Each local agency shall require that this article, or a summary thereof, be set forth in the terms
of any contract subject to this article.



2021-01 Florence Avenue Underpass Storm Pump Removal & Replacement 

D-5

ARTICLE VIII 

CONTRACTOR affirms that the signatures, titles and seals set forth hereinafter in execution of 
this Contract Agreement represent all individuals, firm members, partners, joint venturers, and/or 
corporate officers having principal interest herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein contained 
and have caused this Contract Agreement to be executed in triplicate by setting hereunto their 
name, titles, hands, and seals as of the date noted above. 

By: 

CORA CONSTRUCTORS, INC. 

LYNNE CASEAULT, SECRETARY 

ADDRESS 

THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

By: 
JOHN M. MORA, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

JANET MARTINEZ, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

IVY M. TSAI, CITY ATTORNEY 

(Contractor signature must be notarized with proper acknowledgement attached.) 



Report Submitted By:  Maribel Garcia, Sr. Management Analyst 
City Manager’s Office    Date of Report: April 1, 2021 

City of Santa Fe Springs
   City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

PUBLIC HEARING  
Resolution No. 9710 – Approval of Use of Community Development Block Grant 
Funds (CDBG) for the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
The City of Santa Fe Springs participates in the Los Angeles Urban County 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, a U.S. Department of 
Housing & Urban Development (HUD) entitlement program administered by the 
Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA).  Although the funds are an 
“entitlement,” every year, the City must make specific application to the County 
defining the projects to be funded.  

For FY 2021-2022, the City does not have any eligible CDBG capital projects that 
are ready to move forward, it has been granted a CDBG allocation in the amount 
of $128,530.  These funds can be utilized for a proposed CDBG project that meets 
one of the following three national objectives: 

1. Benefit low- and moderate-income persons;
2. Elimination of slums or blight;
3. Meet an urgent need.

Per HUD guidelines, the City is able to only utilize $25,706 or 20% of the CDBG 
allocation for public service programming.  Traditionally, the City uses this amount 
to partially fund the Teen Program, which is known as The Club and operates out 
of Town Center Hall. The remaining funds must be spent on capital projects. In 
years past, the City exchanged its CDBG fund balance with other cities; however, 
HUD discontinued this practice. For this year, the City has had difficulty identifying 
a suitable project to meet its annual requirement and LACDA representatives 
suggested that the City transfer funds to the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund. 

The CDBG Revolving Grant Fund provides funding to local municipalities for 
CDBG eligible projects that have an identified funding shortfall. Municipalities are 
required to pay back the revolving grant with their annual CDBG funding 
allocations. Cities that transfer funds to the Revolving Grant Fund are repaid in full 
and can request repayment one year after the funds are initially transferred. 

RECOMMENDATION 
• Open the Public Hearing and hear from anyone wishing to speak on this 

matter;
• Approve the FY 2021/2022 CDBG unallocated funds to the CDBG Revolving 

Grant Fund as described in the body of this report;
• Adopt Resolution No. 9710; and
• Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement to transfer CDBG Funds 

to the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund for later use in Santa Fe Springs CDBG 
eligible projects.

ITEM NO. 9



City’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)  
Cooperation Agreement with the County of Los Angeles Page 2 of 2 

  Report Submitted By:  Maribel Garcia, Sr. Management Analyst 
City Manager’s Office    Date of Report: April 1, 2021 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 9710 and allocate 
$102,824 of the City’s unallocated balance to the CDBG Revolving Fund Grant. 
The City will request repayment for the CDBG Revolving Fund Grant transfer for 
an eligible CDBG project to be used for FY 2021-2022.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is not direct fiscal impact associated with the recommended action. Since 
the City does not have any eligible CDBG capital projects that are ready to move 
forward at this time, it is recommended that the CDBG allocation of $102,824 be 
made available for the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund so that other municipalities 
can utilize the funds in the near term and the City can stay in compliance with 
CDBG program guidelines that determine the City’s maximum allowable fund 
balance. The $102,824 will be returned to the City for later use on CDBG eligible 
activities.  

Raymond R. Cruz 
Attachment: City Manager 
Resolution No. 9710 



APPROVED:  
ITEM NO.: 

RESOLUTION NO. 9710 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SANTA FE SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING PROJECTS AND THE TRANSFER OF THE CITY’S COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM UNALLOCATED FUNDS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
REVOLVING GRANT FUND 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 1974 the President of the United States signed into law 
the Housing and Community  Development Act of 1974 (Act); and 

WHEREAS, the primary goals of Title I of the Act are the development of viable 
urban communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment, and 
expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate income; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Los Angeles County Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program has allocated $128,530 in federal Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds to further the attainment of these goals during Fiscal Year 2021-2022; and 

WHEREAS, the City has considered and evaluated CDBG eligible projects and 
community needs; and 

WHEREAS, the City has published information and solicited comments regarding 
eligible activities under the Act and has conducted a public hearing to solicit comments 
and suggestions from the community for the utilization of these funds; and.   

WHEREAS, the Community Development Commission offers participating 
agencies the opportunity to transfer designated funding to a revolving grant fund which 
will be returned to the City to be used at a future time for a CDBG eligible project.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Santa 
Fe Springs as follows: 

Section 1.That the City Council authorizes the transfer of $102,824 in allocated 
CDBG funds to the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund, and allocate its partial CDBG funds of 
$25,706 to the Teen Program. 

Section 4. That the City Manager or his designee is authorized and directed to 
transfer $102,824 in unallocated CDBG funds to the CDBG Revolving Grant Fund.  

Section 5. That the Mayor and/or City Manager are authorized to execute the 
contractual and related documents that are required for the implementation of the 
projects/programs set forth herein.   



APPROVED:  
ITEM NO.: 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 6th day of April 2021 by the following 

roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

_____________________________ 
John M. Mora, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Janet Martinez, City Clerk 



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Maricela Balderas/ Ed Ramirez Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
  Department of Community Services 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

NEW BUSINESS 
Approval of Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of 
Santa Fe Springs and The Whole Child (TWC) for use of modular building located at 
the Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
At its May 24, 2020, City Council meeting, the City Council approved Amendment 
Number Two to extend a one year (1) Lease Agreement with The Whole Child (TWC). 
The extension allowed for continued use of the city-owned modular building adjacent 
to the Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center (GVNC) to operate their Family Housing 
Program.  

The Whole Child’s Family Housing Program remains the lead housing provider for 
homeless families in Southeastern Los Angeles County (Service Planning Area- SPA 
7), and has also now expanded its services to SPA 4 in Los Angeles County. The 
program provides coordinated supportive services (e.g., child and family therapy) and 
linkages to resources through the Departments of Public Social Services, Mental 
Health, and Public Health. In addition, the program provides external resources 
including, legal services, education, and vocational training. Since the beginning of 
the fiscal year to date, the Whole Child has served 32 families in Santa Fe Springs 
and 823 families throughout SPA 7. 

The Whole Child has notified the City that they have purchased a facility in the City of 
Downey to accommodate their growing housing program. The facility is set to begin 
construction this month, and they anticipate it to be completed by October 2021. 
However, due to the uncertainties of the Covid-19 pandemic, which can potentially 
delay their progress, the Whole Child has requested a one year lease extension to 
continue servicing families and the homeless.  

As the high demand for resources continues, especially during this pandemic, and as 
agencies begin to implement re-opening protocols, the partnership with the Whole 
Child will allow the continuance of essential critical services to Santa Fe Springs and 
surrounding communities.  Hence, it is recommended that the City Council amend the 
lease agreement and extend the lease term by one year, commencing on June 1,  

RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City

of Santa Fe Springs and The Whole Child to extend the lease term by one
year for use of the modular building located at the Gus Velasco
Neighborhood Center.

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign Amendment Number Three to
Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and the Whole
Child.

ITEM NO. 10



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Maricela Balderas/ Ed Ramirez Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
  Department of Community Services 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

2021, and ending on May 30, 2022. The Whole Child also agrees to pay the monthly  
rate of $275.00 for landscape service, a 9% increase from the $250 monthly rate for 
the fiscal year 2020-2021. 

The Whole Child continues to be responsible for any costs associated with 
maintenance and repairs to the facility, equipment, fixtures, and interior of the leased 
premises. They will also remain responsible for paying all utilities, including water, 
gas, electricity, telephone, cable, and other utilities used. 

FISCAL IMPACT  
Under the terms of the agreement, rent for the use of the modular building is $275.00 
per month ($3,300 per year) to pay for landscape service.  

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney has reviewed the proposed lease agreement for The Whole Child. 

The Mayor may call upon Family & Human Services Manager, Ed Ramirez, to answer 
 questions the Council may have regarding the staff report. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
1. Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and the Whole Child
2. Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Fe

Springs and Whole Child

























AMENDMENT NUMBER THREE TO LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

AND THE WHOLE CHILD 

This Amendment Number Three (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 6th day of 
April, 2021 (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Santa Fe Springs, a California municipal 
corporation (“City”) and The Whole Child – Mental Health & Housing Services, a California 
nonprofit corporation (“The Whole Child”). 

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2018, the City and The Whole Child entered into a lease 
agreement for the lease by the City to The Whole Child of a modular unit located at 9251 Pioneer 
Blvd (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, on May 23, 2019, the City and The Whole Child approved Amendment 
Number One to the Agreement to extend the lease term by one year and revise the monthly rent 
to reflect the exclusion of payment for electrical and water smart meter installations; and  

WHEREAS, on May 28, 2020, the City and The Whole Child approved Amendment 
Number Two to the Agreement to extend the lease term by one year with a monthly rent of two 
hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00); and  

WHEREAS, the City and The Whole Child desire to amend the Agreement to extend the 
lease term by one year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The lease term set forth in Section 4 of the Agreement is extended for a period of
one year commencing on June 1, 2021 and ending on May 30, 2022. 

2. Section 4 of the Agreement is amended to provide for a monthly rent of two
hundred and seventy-five dollars ($275.00) for the period of June 1, 2021 through May 30, 2022.  
This monthly rent amount reflects a 9% increase to cover landscaping cost. 

3. Except as amended herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand by their duly authorized 
representatives as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS   THE WHOLE CHILD  

John M. Mora, Mayor Constanza Pachon, Chief Executive Officer 

Date:_______________________ Date:_____________________ 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ivy M. Tsai, City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

Janet Martinez, City Clerk 



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Maricela Balderas/ Ed Ramirez Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
  Department of Community Services 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

NEW BUSINESS  
Approval of Amendments to Agreements between City of Santa Fe Springs and 
Options for Learning and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD). 

 

BACKGROUND 
Since the fall of 2017, the City of Santa Fe Springs has worked closely with Options 
for Learning to preserve vital childcare services for the community when these 
programs were no longer financially sustainable by the City. Over the course of three 
years, staff has worked closely with the City Council Child Care Sub-committee to 
address the best way to preserve child care services for the community given the 
City's ongoing financial challenges.  

It was determined that the best alternative was to subcontract the childcare programs 
to Options for Learning in order to maintain these services in the community. On 
February 22, 2018, the City entered into a subcontracting agreement with Options for 
Learning. Under the terms of the subcontract agreement, Options for Learning was to 
administer the City's contract with the California Department of Education (CDE) to 
operate the preschool programs for one (1) year beginning on July 1, 2018, at the 
current preschool locations, Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center (GVNC) and Los 
Nietos Child Care Center.  

Subsequently, on May 24, 2018, Options for Learning entered into a premises use 
agreement to replace the City's school-age morning and after-school childcare 
program at the Lakeview Childcare Center with their Surround Care program. As part 
of this agreement, the City also renewed its agreement with the Little Lake City School 
District (LLCSD) to allow for the City-owned modular unit to remain on the Lakeview 
Elementary School property to provide childcare services offered through Options for 
Learning; this was a three-year agreement.    

RECOMMENDATIONS 
• Approve Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement between the City of

Santa Fe Springs and Options for Learning at the Los Nietos Childcare
Center.

• Approve Amendment Number One to Premises Use Agreement between City 
of Santa Fe Springs and Options for Learning at Lakeview Elementary
School.

• Approve Amendment Number One to Agreement between the City of Santa
Fe Springs and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD).

• Authorize the Mayor to execute and sign amendments with Options for
Learning and Little Lake City School District (LLCSD).

ITEM NO. 11



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Maricela Balderas/ Ed Ramirez Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
  Department of Community Services 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

Options for Learning provided oversight of the childcare operations that continued to 
operate in the same capacity and same licensed city facilities. In addition, Options for 
Learning offered employment to all impacted City of Santa Fe Springs childcare 
employees and agreed to pay the monthly rent for the modular units at the GVNC 
owned by Williams Scotsman.  

On March 14, 2019, City Council approved Resolution No. 9623, authorizing the 
relinquishment of contract CSPP-8170 with the CDE for the purpose of dissolving the 
City's Child Care and Development Services for the Pre-school Age Program for Fiscal 
Year 2018-2019. The CDE contract was later awarded to Options for Learning, and 
beginning on July 1, 2019, Options for Learning was no longer a subcontractor of the 
City and offered childcare services under their own licensing. 

On June 13, 2019, City Council approved a one year lease extension to continue to 
operate the child care programs while Options for Learning and the City planned to 
move their privately owned childcare modular units to their preferred location at Los 
Nietos Park. On February 25, 2020, Options for Learning met with City staff and the 
City Council Child Care Sub-committee to communicate they could not continue with 
the childcare modular unit project at Los Nietos Park due to the high financial and 
increasing costs of the project. Although we received the regretful news, Options for 
Learning remained invested in providing childcare services in Santa Fe Springs and 
intended to uphold its partnership in offering services in the community. Thus, Options 
for Learning requested a one-year extension to continue to operate the childcare 
programs at the GVNC and Los Nietos Childcare sites while working with the City to 
identify an alternate plan. On June 11, 2020, an additional one-year extension was 
approved by City Council to allow for childcare services. However, due to the Covid-
19 pandemic and closures of both City and Options for Learning facilities, discussions 
were temporarily halted for the remainder of 2020. 

In January 2021, discussions with Options for Learning reconvened and an alternate 
plan has been developed. Options for Learning is requesting to extend the use of the 
Los Nietos Childcare Center to serve as its full-day preschool, which currently 
accommodates their half-day preschool program. Children from the GVNC’s full-day 
preschool site will be transferred to Los Nietos Childcare Center, allowing for the 
removal of the GVNC modular units and ending that lease agreement between the 
City and Options for Learning. The existing students of the half-day preschool will be 
promoted to kindergarten, and the half-day preschool program will no longer be 
offered. Any future families in need of half-day preschool will be referred to local sites 
such as the Carmela location on Carmenita Rd. in South Whittier. In addition, the City's 
Parks and Recreation Services Division’s Summer Camp program that has 
traditionally used the Los Nietos Childcare Center from June through July, will be 
moved into the Activity Center where the size of the facility and amenities are more 
suitable for the program.  



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Maricela Balderas/ Ed Ramirez Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
  Department of Community Services 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

Options for Learning is also requesting the continued use of the Lakeview Childcare 
Center's to offer their surround care program once classes resume on campus.  

LLCSD agrees with this extension, which also supports the proposed approval of 
amending the Premises Use Agreement between the City and School District.    

Under the terms of the proposed amendments, the agreements between the City, 
Options for Learning, and LLCSD will be extended for five (5) year terms upon mutual 
consensus by the City, Options for Learning, and LLCSD. All terms, conditions, and 
provisions of the original agreements shall remain in full force and effect. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Options for Learning agrees to pay $100/month to use the City-owned Los Nietos and 
$100/month to use Lakeview Childcare Centers which has no significant impact on 
the general fund.  

Since Options for Learning acquired the City's Childcare services program, the City 
has realized an overall savings of approximately $390,000.  

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 
The use of these facilities will allow Options for Learning to continue to provide a vital 
and essential service in our community. In addition, under the terms of the Los Nietos 
Childcare Center agreement, the City will have access to the facility during special 
events or programming at Los Nietos Park. Options for Learning will remain 
responsible for payment of all utilities, including water, gas, electricity, cable, and 
disposal services. 

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney's office has reviewed the proposed amended agreements for 
Options for Learning and Little Lake City School District.  

The Mayor may call upon Family & Human Services Manager, Ed Ramirez, to answer 
questions the Council may have regarding the staff report.  

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By:   Maricela Balderas/ Ed Ramirez Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
  Department of Community Services 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

Attachments: 
1. Amendment Number Three to Lease Agreement Between the City of Santa Fe

Springs and Options for Learning at Los Nietos Childcare Center
2. Amendment Number One to Premises Use Agreement between the City of Santa

Fe Springs and Options for Learning at Lakeview Elementary School
3. Amendment Number One to Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and

Little Lake City School District (LLCSD)
4. Premises Use Agreement between City of Santa Fe Springs and Options for

Learning at Lakeview Elementary School
5. Lease Agreement Between the City of Santa Fe Springs and Options for

Learning at Los Nietos Child Care Center



AMENDMENT NUMBER THREE TO LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

AND OPTIONS FOR LEARNING  
AT LOS NIETOS CHILDCARE CENTER 

This Amendment Number Three (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 6th day of 
April, 2021 (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Santa Fe Springs, a California municipal 
corporation (“City”) and Options for Learning, a California nonprofit corporation (“Options for 
Learning”). 

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2018, the City and Options for Learning entered into a lease 
agreement for the lease by the City to Options for Learning of the property commonly known as 
the Los Nietos Childcare Center located 11143 Charlesworth Rd. (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2019, the City and Options for Learning entered into Amendment 
Number One to the Agreement to extend the lease term by one year; and 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2020, the City and Options for Learning entered into Amendment 
Number Two to the Agreement to extend the lease term by one year; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Options for Learning desire to amend the Agreement to extend 
the lease term for five years and to provide full-day preschool.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The lease term set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement is extended for a period of
5 years commencing on July 1, 2021 and ending on June 30, 2026.  

2. Section 6(B), Use of Leased Premises, is amended to include Lessee’s operation
of a full-day preschool. 

3. Except as amended herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand by their duly authorized 
representatives as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS   OPTIONS FOR LEARNING  

John M. Mora, Mayor  Paul Pulver, Chief Executive Officer 

Date:_________________________  Date:_______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ivy M. Tsai, City Attorney 



ATTEST: 

Janet Martinez, City Clerk 



AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE TO PREMISES USE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

AND OPTIONS FOR LEARNING  
AT LAKEVIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

This Amendment Number One (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 6th day of 
April, 2021 (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Santa Fe Springs, a California municipal 
corporation (“City”) and Options for Learning, a California nonprofit corporation (“Options for 
Learning”). 

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2018, the City and Options for Learning entered into a Premises 
Use Agreement for Options for Learning to operate the Extended Day Services Program at 
Lakeview Elementary School (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the City and Options for Learning desire to amend the Agreement to extend 
the term of the Agreement through June 30, 2026.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The term set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement is extended for a
period of 5 years commencing on July 1, 2021 and ending on June 30, 2026.  

2. Except as amended herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of
the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand by their duly authorized 
representatives as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS   OPTIONS FOR LEARNING  

John M. Mora, Mayor  Paul Pulver, Chief Executive Officer 

Date:_________________________  Date:_______________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ivy M. Tsai, City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

Janet Martinez, City Clerk 



AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE TO AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

AND LITTLE LAKE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (LLCSD) 

This Amendment Number One (“Amendment”) is made and entered into this 6th day of 
April, 2021 (“Effective Date”) between the LITTLE LAKE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT (hereinafter 
referred to as "LLCSD") and the CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, a municipal corporation 
(hereinafter referred to as "City"). 

WHEREAS, Section 40045 of the Education Code of the State of California authorizes 
school districts to allow the use of school buildings, facilities, grounds, and equipment for child 
care or day care programs established in cooperation with any city to provide supervision and 
activities for children of preschool and elementary school age, together with such supervisory, 
consultant, custodial, clerical, or other services as the school district deems advisable with respect 
to the need of such program and the service to the community; and 

WHEREAS, in 1997, the City and District entered into an agreement to allow the City to 
operate a before/after school child care program for school aged children attending Lakeview 
Elementary School (“Extended Day Services Program”); and 

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2018, The City and District entered into a new agreement to allow 
for the operation of the Options for Learning’s before and after school Surround Care Program 
(“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the City and District’s desire to amend the Agreement to extend the term of 
the Agreement through June 30, 2026. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The term set forth in Section 9 of the Agreement is extended through June
30, 2026, to allow for the continued operation of the Options for Learning before and after 
school Surround Care Program. 

2. Except as amended herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand by their duly authorized 
representatives as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS 

________________________________ 
John M. Mora, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Janet Martinez, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_______________________________ 
Ivy M. Tsai, City Attorney 



LITTLE LAKE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

________________________________ 
Name and Title  

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ 
Name and Title  















































































City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 9709 – Request for Parking Restrictions during Certain Hours on 
Altamar Place West of Dice Road 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
The Traffic Commission at their meeting of March 18, 2021, reviewed the attached 
report for implementing parking restrictions during certain hours on Altamar Place west 
of Dice Road.  The Commission voted 4 to 0 to recommend to the City Council for 
consideration and approval of the proposed parking restriction. 

Staff recommends implementation of the requested parking restriction that has been 
requested by the Police Services Center to deal with long-term motorhome parking 
issues. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
Attachment No. 1:  Resolution No. 9709 
Attachment No. 2:  Traffic Commission Report – March 18, 2021 

RECOMMENDATION 
• Approve Resolution No. 9709 to implement a parking restriction between the hours 

of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. be implemented on both sides of Altamar Place from 
Dice Road to the westerly terminus along with a tow-away provision for violators.

ITEM NO. 12



APPROVED:  
ITEM NO.: 

RESOLUTION NO. 9709 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, 
CALIFORNIA PROHIBITING PARKING OF VEHICLES AT CERTAIN LOCATIONS 
DURING CERTAIN HOURS 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS DOES RESOLVE AND 
ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Pursuant to the provision of Section 72.21 of the City Code, when 
authorized signs are in place giving notice thereof, the following location is designated as 
a place where no person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle for any purpose other than 
the loading or unloading of passengers or materials between the hours of 9:00 pm to 6:00 
am: 

Both sides of Altamar Place from Dice Road to the westerly terminus of Altamar Place. 

When signs are posted giving notice thereof, any vehicle which is parked or left standing 
in violation of the provisions of this Resolution, shall be removed pursuant to the 
provisions of Vehicle Code Section 22651 (n). 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this 6th day of April 2021. 

______________________________ 
John M. Mora, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Janet Martinez, CMC, City Clerk 



Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report: March 15, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

City of Santa Fe Springs
Traffic Commission Meeting March 18, 2021 

TRAFFIC ENGINEER’S REPORT 
Request for Parking Restriction on Altamar Place West of Dice Road 

 
 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
The Police Services Center received a request to investigate the placing of an 
overnight parking restriction on Altamar Place west of Dice Road.  The Police 
Services Center has been dealing with a large motorhome/homeless problem and 
all of the associated problems (trespassing, vandalism, destruction of landscaping, 
etc.) that are caused by the motorhomes and homeless on this street. They feel 
that the removal of the motorhomes will also cause the homeless to vacate this 
area.  It was decided that a parking restriction during the hours of 9:00 p.m. to 6:00 
a.m. along with a provision for the towing of vehicles that violate the restriction
would assist in solving the problem.

Altamar Place is an industrial cul-de-sac street with a curb-to-curb width of 48 feet 
and runs in an east/west direction west Dice Road for a distance of 580 feet or .11 
miles.  The street is unstriped and is one lane in each direction. Parking is generally 
permitted on both sides of Altamar Place but there are few areas where parking is 
prohibited next to driveways.  Altamar Place is flat and has a straight alignment. 
The ADT for Altamar Place is estimated to be about 500 vehicles per day.  The 
intersection of Altamar Place and Dice Road is controlled by a Stop sign for 
eastbound Altamar Place traffic.  The abutting development along Dice Road is 
light industrial-type development.  

After a review of the situation along Altamar Place, staff recommends that the 
Traffic Commission concur with the request for a parking restriction between the 
hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on both sides of Altamar Place from Dice Road 
to the westerly terminus along with a tow-away provision for violators. 

Noe Negrete  
Director of Public Works 

Attachments: 
Attachment No. 1:  Location Map 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Commission recommend to the City Council that a parking restriction 
between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. be implemented on both sides of 
Altamar Place from Dice Road to the westerly terminus along with a tow-away 
provision for violators. 



LOCATION MAP 

PROPOSED NO STOPPING 

9:00 PM – 6:00 AM 

VDeLeon
Typewritten Text
ALTAMAR PLACE WEST OF DICE ROAD



City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

NEW BUSINESS  
On-Call Professional Engineering Services – Award of Contract 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
The City Council authorized the advertisement for the On-Call Professional 
Engineering Services Request for Proposals (RFP) on December 10, 2020.  The 
proposed term for the Professional Services Agreement will be four (4) years.   

The Public Works Engineering staff solicited the Request for Proposals (RFP) from 
qualified Engineering firms (Consultant) to provide On-Call Professional Engineering 
Services for various disciplines including civil engineering, structural engineering, 
mechanical engineering, water engineering (hydraulic and water process engineering), 
electrical and controls engineering, architectural design, landscape design, traffic 
engineering, staff augmentation, construction management,  surveying and mapping, 
and geotechnical design.  A single consultant was not expected to be able to provide 
all the services and disciplines previously mentioned.  The consultants interested in 
one or more services/disciplines were encouraged to submit a proposal.  

The selected Consultants will provide a broad range of professional engineering 
services in support of and in close coordination with the Public Works/Engineering 
Division staff.  These services will be provided on an as-needed basis through a 
Request for Quote for each specific project.    

On January 26, 2021, a total of thirty-five (35) proposals were received. A three-
member evaluation team consisting of three engineers reviewed each proposal based 
on project-specific criteria, such as the firm’s and project manager's experience with 
similar projects, project team qualifications, understanding of the work to be done, and 
firm’s relevant project references, etc.   

The evaluation team consisted of Noe Negrete (Director of Public Works), Robert 
Garcia (Capital Improvement Projects Manager), and Leonard Lui (Assistant Civil 
Engineer).  Upon evaluating the proposals, the evaluation team recommends awarding 
contracts to twenty-one consulting firms due to each of the firms scoring well above 
average and each having a specialized strength in a specific engineering discipline. 
The On-Call Professional Services will be provided on an as-needed basis through a 
Request for Quote for each specific project.   

RECOMMENDATION 
• Accept the proposals; and
• Award a contract to each of the twenty-one engineering consulting firms listed

below for the On-Call Professional Engineering Services for various capital
improvement projects.

ITEM NO. 13



On-Call Professional Engineering Services – 
Award of Contract Page 2 of 2 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

The recommended Engineering Consulting Firms are as follows: 

1. CNC Engineering, Inc.
2. Psomas
3. ABSG Consulting, Inc.
4. BKF Engineers
5. Dudek
6. Black O'Dowd and Associates, Inc.
7. NUVIS Landscape Architecture
8. RJM Design Group, Inc.
9. RMA International Landscape Architecture
10. Minagar & associates, Inc.
11. Coast Surveying, Inc.
12. GMU Geotechnical, Inc.
13. Civiltec Engineering, Inc.
14. Coory Engineering
15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc.
16. JMDiaz, Inc.
17. NV5, Inc.
18. Onward Engineering
19. Prescience Corporation
20. Southstar Engineering & Consulting, Inc.
21. Transtech Engineers, Inc.

Attached is a summary of the evaluation teams’ rankings of the proposals.  As shown, 
twenty-one of the thirty-five engineering firms secured above-average scores.  The 
proposals submitted to the City and the evaluation score sheets are on file with the 
Public Works Department. 

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the sample contract agreement that will be 
provided to each on-call professional engineering firm.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for On-Call Professional Engineering services is included in the approved 
Public Works Department budget, CIP Fund, Bond Funds, Water CIP fund, and state 
and local funding for capital improvement projects.   

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
Attachment No. 1:  Evaluation of Firm Proposals 
Attachment No. 2:  Sample Professional Services Agreement 



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 14 11 14 15 14 14 15 13 14 15 12

15 15 16 16 17 17 16 17 18 17 12 15

16 15 16 18 18 16 16 15 18 17 10 15

18 15 15 18 15 16 17 18 17 17 15 14

9 7 9 9 7 9 10 10 8 9 8 7

12 6 12 12 6 12 12 6 12 10 6 10

83 72 79 87 78 84 85 81 86 84 66 73

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. Coory Engineering 88

3. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

4. Prescience Corporation 85

5. BKF Engineers 84

6. NV5 Inc. 84

7. Psomas 83

8. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 81

9. CNC Engineering 79

10. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 78

11. Tait & Associates 78

12. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

13. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 74

14. CSG Consultants 74

15. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

16. Nuvis 73

17. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 71

18. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 70

19. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

20. KOA 64

21. PacRim Engineering 61

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

A. Civil Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

CNC Engineering Psomas BKF Engineers

78 83 84

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

HR Green Pacific, Inc.

74

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 6



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. Coory Engineering 88

3. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

4. Prescience Corporation 85

5. BKF Engineers 84

6. NV5 Inc. 84

7. Psomas 83

8. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 81

9. CNC Engineering 79

10. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 78

11. Tait & Associates 78

12. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

13. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 74

14. CSG Consultants 74

15. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

16. Nuvis 73

17. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 71

18. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 70

19. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

20. KOA 64

21. PacRim Engineering 61

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

A. Civil Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 11 14 12 14 11 15 14 14 12 15 14

18 18 18 17 16 15 19 15 16 18 18 19

17 20 18 17 15 15 18 15 15 17 18 17

18 18 19 17 18 16 18 16 15 17 15 18

9 10 10 7 3 7 9 6 8 9 10 10

14 10 15 12 10 11 11 8 12 13 10 13

90 87 94 82 76 75 90 74 80 86 86 91

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

Transtech Engineering, Inc.

78

Civiltec Engineering, Inc.

81

Coory Engineering

88

Onward Engineering

90

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 6



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. Coory Engineering 88

3. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

4. Prescience Corporation 85

5. BKF Engineers 84

6. NV5 Inc. 84

7. Psomas 83

8. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 81

9. CNC Engineering 79

10. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 78

11. Tait & Associates 78

12. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

13. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 74

14. CSG Consultants 74

15. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

16. Nuvis 73

17. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 71

18. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 70

19. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

20. KOA 64

21. PacRim Engineering 61

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

A. Civil Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

9 10 11 12

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 14 14 12 10 11 14 11 14 13 15 12

16 14 15 18 12 15 18 20 19 17 15 17

16 17 16 15 10 15 18 19 18 17 18 16

18 17 16 17 15 16 18 17 18 18 18 17

9 7 9 8 3 7 8 7 9 9 8 8

6 6 9 10 10 10 13 10 13 12 10 12

78 75 79 80 60 74 89 84 91 86 84 82

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable.

84

Hohbach-Lewin, Inc.

71

D R Consultants & Designers, Inc.

77

JMDiaz, Inc. NV5, Inc.

88

Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 6



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. Coory Engineering 88

3. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

4. Prescience Corporation 85

5. BKF Engineers 84

6. NV5 Inc. 84

7. Psomas 83

8. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 81

9. CNC Engineering 79

10. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 78

11. Tait & Associates 78

12. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

13. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 74

14. CSG Consultants 74

15. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

16. Nuvis 73

17. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 71

18. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 70

19. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

20. KOA 64

21. PacRim Engineering 61

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

A. Civil Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

13 14 15 16

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

10 10 10 15 11 15 12 10 7 13 11 12

10 12 11 15 20 20 15 15 14 15 14 15

13 13 12 18 15 18 15 17 15 15 12 15

15 14 13 19 16 18 15 14 15 15 15 14

7 5 7 10 10 10 8 6 6 6 5 6

8 6 7 8 6 11 12 10 12 8 6 7

63 60 60 85 78 92 77 72 69 72 63 69

61 85 68

SVA Architects, Inc.

73

PacRim Engineering Prescience Corporation Quantum Consulting, Inc.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 4 of 6



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. Coory Engineering 88

3. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

4. Prescience Corporation 85

5. BKF Engineers 84

6. NV5 Inc. 84

7. Psomas 83

8. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 81

9. CNC Engineering 79

10. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 78

11. Tait & Associates 78

12. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

13. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 74

14. CSG Consultants 74

15. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

16. Nuvis 73

17. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 71

18. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 70

19. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

20. KOA 64

21. PacRim Engineering 61

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

A. Civil Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

17 18 19 20

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 15 12 12 11 12 13 12 10 13 13 12

16 14 15 14 16 18 16 13 13 15 14 16

17 15 15 12 15 12 16 14 14 15 15 14

17 15 14 12 14 13 19 16 14 12 18 14

8 8 7 6 6 8 8 7 6 8 7 8

12 10 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 6 10

83 77 74 66 72 73 82 72 67 73 73 74

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

78 70 74 73

Tait & Associates W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. CSG Consultants Nuvis

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 5 of 6



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. Coory Engineering 88

3. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

4. Prescience Corporation 85

5. BKF Engineers 84

6. NV5 Inc. 84

7. Psomas 83

8. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 81

9. CNC Engineering 79

10. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 78

11. Tait & Associates 78

12. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

13. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 74

14. CSG Consultants 74

15. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

16. Nuvis 73

17. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 71

18. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 70

19. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

20. KOA 64

21. PacRim Engineering 61

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

A. Civil Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

21

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

11 13 11

13 12 13

11 10 14

14 16 9

9 9 6

8 6 6

66 66 59

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

KOA Corporation

64

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 6 of 6



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 12 13 14 15 13 13 14 14 12 10 12

18 16 18 16 13 18 16 14 17 18 14 16

18 16 18 16 15 18 16 17 17 15 10 15

17 18 18 17 18 17 18 14 18 17 15 16

8 7 8 10 5 8 9 0 9 8 5 7

6 6 8 12 6 12 6 6 13 10 10 10

81 75 83 85 72 86 78 65 88 80 64 76

1. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

2. BKF Engineers 81

3. ABS Consulting 80

4. Prescience Corporation 79

5. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

6. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 75

7. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 73

8. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

9. PacRim Engineering 59

10. KOA 56

ABS Consulting BKF Engineers D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

81 77 73

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

80

B. Structural Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

2. BKF Engineers 81

3. ABS Consulting 80

4. Prescience Corporation 79

5. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

6. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 75

7. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 73

8. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

9. PacRim Engineering 59

10. KOA 56

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

B. Structural Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 11 14 10 10 10 15 11 15 13 11 12

18 20 19 10 12 11 15 15 20 15 14 15

18 19 19 13 5 12 18 5 18 15 12 15

18 15 18 15 18 13 19 15 18 15 10 14

8 7 9 7 3 7 10 6 10 6 8 6

13 10 13 8 6 7 8 6 12 8 8 7

89 82 92 63 54 60 85 58 93 72 63 69

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

JMDiaz, Inc. PacRim Engineering Prescience Corporation SVA Architects, Inc.

SCORING RANGES

88

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

59 79 68

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. JMDiaz, Inc. 88

2. BKF Engineers 81

3. ABS Consulting 80

4. Prescience Corporation 79

5. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 77

6. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 75

7. Hohbach-Lewin, Inc 73

8. SVA Architects, Inc. 68

9. PacRim Engineering 59

10. KOA 56

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

B. Structural Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

9 10

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

15 14 14 12 13 11

19 15 16 16 12 13

18 15 15 16 0 14

18 0 15 15 0 9

9 0 8 0 8 6

11 10 12 12 6 6

90 54 80 71 39 59

Civiltec Engineering, Inc. KOA

56

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80)

75

EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 12 9 14 15 11 14 11 14 14 11 15

16 17 15 17 12 15 18 18 18 19 17 18

17 14 15 17 15 15 17 20 18 19 20 20

18 19 15 17 15 14 18 18 19 18 20 18

8 9 6 9 9 7 9 10 10 9 8 10

12 10 10 10 6 10 14 10 15 6 6 11

84 81 70 84 72 72 90 87 94 85 82 92

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 89

3. Southstar Engineering 86

4. NV5 Inc. 85

5. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

6. Interwest Consulting Group 78

7. Prescience Corporation 77

8. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

9. CSG Consultants 75

10. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 75

11. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

12. Quantum Consulting, Inc 72

13. PacRim Engineering 59

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

Interwest Consulting Group HR Green Pacific, Inc. Onward Engineering Southstar Engineering

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score
SCORING RANGES

78 76 90 86

C. Staff Augmentation

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 4



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 89

3. Southstar Engineering 86

4. NV5 Inc. 85

5. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

6. Interwest Consulting Group 78

7. Prescience Corporation 77

8. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

9. CSG Consultants 75

10. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 75

11. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

12. Quantum Consulting, Inc 72

13. PacRim Engineering 59

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

C. Staff Augmentation

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

12 14 11 13 12 10 13 14 14 14 11 14

17 16 15 16 13 13 16 14 15 18 20 19

17 15 15 16 16 14 16 17 16 18 20 18

17 18 16 19 20 14 18 8 16 18 17 18

7 8 7 8 6 6 9 3 9 8 8 9

12 10 11 10 8 10 6 6 9 13 10 13

82 81 75 82 75 67 78 62 79 89 86 91

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

Transtech Engineering, Inc.

75 73 89

CSG Consultants D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. JMDiaz, Inc.

79

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 4



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 89

3. Southstar Engineering 86

4. NV5 Inc. 85

5. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

6. Interwest Consulting Group 78

7. Prescience Corporation 77

8. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

9. CSG Consultants 75

10. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 75

11. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

12. Quantum Consulting, Inc 72

13. PacRim Engineering 59

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

C. Staff Augmentation

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

9 10 11 12

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 15 12 10 11 10 15 11 15 12 10 7

17 20 17 10 12 11 15 20 20 15 15 14

17 16 16 13 0 12 18 15 18 15 12 15

18 18 17 15 17 13 19 0 18 15 17 15

9 8 8 7 7 7 10 1 10 8 6 6

12 10 12 8 6 7 8 6 11 12 10 12

86 87 82 63 53 60 85 53 92 77 70 69

Prescience Corporation Quantum Consulting, Inc

85 59

NV5, Inc. PacRim Engineering

77 72

SCORING RANGES

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 4



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Onward Engineering 90

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 89

3. Southstar Engineering 86

4. NV5 Inc. 85

5. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

6. Interwest Consulting Group 78

7. Prescience Corporation 77

8. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

9. CSG Consultants 75

10. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 75

11. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

12. Quantum Consulting, Inc 72

13. PacRim Engineering 59

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

C. Staff Augmentation

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

13

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

12 11 12

14 16 18

12 18 12

12 20 13

6 10 8

10 10 10

66 85 73

W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc.

75

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 4 of 4



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 15 13 13 14 13 13 12 9 12 13 11

16 16 18 17 17 17 16 17 15 16 15 13

16 19 18 18 17 17 17 16 15 16 15 14

17 18 17 18 20 18 18 19 15 15 19 9

10 10 8 9 9 8 8 9 6 0 10 6

12 6 12 12 10 12 12 10 10 12 10 6

85 84 86 87 87 85 84 83 70 71 82 59

1. Onward Engineering 89

2. Prescience Corporation 88

3. Southstar Engineering 87

4. Dudek 86

5. BKF Engineers 85

6. JMDiaz, Inc. 85

7. NV5 Inc. 83

8. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

9. Interwest Consulting Group 79

10. SA Associates 78

11. Z & K Consultants, Inc. 77

12. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

13. Pacific Civil Solutions, Inc. 75

14. Quantum Consulting, Inc 74

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

16. KOA Corporation 71

17. PacRim Engineering 56

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

D. Constr Mgmt & Inspection

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score
SCORING RANGES

85 86 79 71

BKF Engineers Dudek Interwest Consulting Group KOA Corporation

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Onward Engineering 89

2. Prescience Corporation 88

3. Southstar Engineering 87

4. Dudek 86

5. BKF Engineers 85

6. JMDiaz, Inc. 85

7. NV5 Inc. 83

8. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

9. Interwest Consulting Group 79

10. SA Associates 78

11. Z & K Consultants, Inc. 77

12. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

13. Pacific Civil Solutions, Inc. 75

14. Quantum Consulting, Inc 74

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

16. KOA Corporation 71

17. PacRim Engineering 56

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

D. Constr Mgmt & Inspection

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 10 11 13 13 13 12 10 12 14 15 12

16 16 14 18 15 15 15 14 15 17 12 15

15 18 14 17 15 16 15 15 15 17 14 15

17 20 15 17 16 16 18 16 16 17 15 14

8 8 7 8 8 7 8 9 7 9 8 7

8 6 8 8 10 9 12 10 11 10 6 10

77 78 69 81 77 76 80 74 76 84 70 73

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

SA Associates Z&K Consultants, Inc. HR Green Pacific, Inc.

78 77 76

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

75

Pacific Civil Solutions, Inc.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Onward Engineering 89

2. Prescience Corporation 88

3. Southstar Engineering 87

4. Dudek 86

5. BKF Engineers 85

6. JMDiaz, Inc. 85

7. NV5 Inc. 83

8. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

9. Interwest Consulting Group 79

10. SA Associates 78

11. Z & K Consultants, Inc. 77

12. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

13. Pacific Civil Solutions, Inc. 75

14. Quantum Consulting, Inc 74

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

16. KOA Corporation 71

17. PacRim Engineering 56

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

D. Constr Mgmt & Inspection

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

9 10 11 12

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 11 14 14 11 15 12 14 11 13 14 14

18 20 18 19 17 18 17 16 15 16 14 15

17 18 18 19 20 20 17 15 15 16 10 16

18 14 19 19 20 18 17 16 16 18 12 16

9 10 10 9 10 10 7 10 7 9 7 9

14 10 15 6 6 11 12 10 11 6 6 9

90 83 94 86 84 92 82 81 75 78 63 79

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

79 73

EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

Transtech Engineering, Inc. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc.Onward Engineering Southstar Engineering

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80)

89 87

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Onward Engineering 89

2. Prescience Corporation 88

3. Southstar Engineering 87

4. Dudek 86

5. BKF Engineers 85

6. JMDiaz, Inc. 85

7. NV5 Inc. 83

8. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

9. Interwest Consulting Group 79

10. SA Associates 78

11. Z & K Consultants, Inc. 77

12. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

13. Pacific Civil Solutions, Inc. 75

14. Quantum Consulting, Inc 74

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

16. KOA Corporation 71

17. PacRim Engineering 56

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

D. Constr Mgmt & Inspection

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

13 14 15 16

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 11 14 13 15 12 10 10 10 15 11 15

18 20 19 17 15 17 10 12 11 15 20 20

18 17 18 17 15 16 13 0 12 19 20 18

18 14 18 18 18 17 15 15 13 19 20 18

8 4 9 9 9 8 7 3 7 10 10 10

13 10 13 12 10 12 8 6 7 8 6 11

89 76 91 86 82 82 63 46 60 86 87 92

85 83

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

JMDiaz, Inc. NV5 Inc. PacRim Engineering

56 88

Prescience Corporation

SCORING RANGES

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 4 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Onward Engineering 89

2. Prescience Corporation 88

3. Southstar Engineering 87

4. Dudek 86

5. BKF Engineers 85

6. JMDiaz, Inc. 85

7. NV5 Inc. 83

8. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

9. Interwest Consulting Group 79

10. SA Associates 78

11. Z & K Consultants, Inc. 77

12. HR Green Pacific, Inc. 76

13. Pacific Civil Solutions, Inc. 75

14. Quantum Consulting, Inc 74

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

16. KOA Corporation 71

17. PacRim Engineering 56

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

D. Constr Mgmt & Inspection

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

17

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

12 10 7

15 17 14

15 17 15

15 14 15

8 9 6

12 10 12

77 77 69

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

74

Quantum Consulting, Inc.

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 5 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 10 14 12 11 14 13 14 14 10 10 10

18 15 19 18 14 19 16 14 15 10 12 11

18 14 19 17 18 17 16 17 17 13 0 12

17 15 18 17 0 18 18 15 17 15 15 13

8 9 9 9 3 10 9 3 9 7 0 7

12 10 13 13 10 13 4 6 10 8 10 7

87 73 92 86 56 91 76 69 82 63 47 60

1. Black O'dowd & Associates, Inc (BOA) 84

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 83

3. Prescience Corporation 81

4. Coory Engineering 78

5. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 76

6. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

7. PacRim Engineering 57

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score
SCORING RANGES

Black O'dowd & Associates, Inc. Coory Engineering D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. PacRim Engineering

84 78 76 57

E. Architectural Services

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 2



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Black O'dowd & Associates, Inc (BOA) 84

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 83

3. Prescience Corporation 81

4. Coory Engineering 78

5. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 76

6. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

7. PacRim Engineering 57

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

E. Architectural Services

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

5 6 7

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

15 11 15 13 11 12 14 11 14

15 20 20 15 14 15 18 20 19

18 16 18 15 12 15 18 19 18

19 8 18 15 15 14 18 15 18

10 5 10 6 7 6 8 5 9

8 6 11 8 10 7 13 0 13

85 66 92 72 69 69 89 70 91

81 70 83

SVA Architects, Inc. JMDiaz, Inc.

SCORING RANGES

Prescience Corporation

EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80)

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 2



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 13 12 14 13 13 15 10 15 14 15 13

15 15 16 16 15 17 19 15 20 16 17 18

15 15 14 17 11 17 18 5 19 16 20 18

12 18 14 17 15 18 18 15 19 17 5 17

8 9 8 8 9 8 9 10 10 10 6 8

10 10 10 10 10 11 14 10 13 12 6 12

73 80 74 82 73 84 93 65 96 85 69 86

1. JMDiaz, Inc. 87

2. RMA International 85

3. Prescience Corporation 84

4. BKF Engineers 80

5. RJM Design Group, Inc. 80

6. Psomas 77

7. NUVIS 76

8. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 74

9. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

10. Tait & Associates 69

11. KOA 56

12. PacRim Engineering 54

NUVIS RJM Design Group, Inc. RMA international BKF Engineers

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

80 85 80

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

F. Landscape Architect

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Project Manager

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

SCORING RANGES
Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

76

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. JMDiaz, Inc. 87

2. RMA International 85

3. Prescience Corporation 84

4. BKF Engineers 80

5. RJM Design Group, Inc. 80

6. Psomas 77

7. NUVIS 76

8. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 74

9. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

10. Tait & Associates 69

11. KOA 56

12. PacRim Engineering 54

F. Landscape Architect

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Project Manager

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 14 14 14 11 14 10 10 10 15 11 15

16 14 17 18 20 19 10 12 11 15 20 20

16 5 17 18 19 19 13 0 12 18 18 18

18 15 18 18 15 18 15 10 13 19 14 18

9 2 9 8 8 9 7 2 7 10 5 10

6 6 13 13 6 13 8 6 7 8 6 12

78 56 88 89 79 92 63 40 60 85 74 93

D R Consultants & Designers, Inc.

8774

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

54 84

JMDiaz, Inc. PacRim Engineering Prescience Corporation

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. JMDiaz, Inc. 87

2. RMA International 85

3. Prescience Corporation 84

4. BKF Engineers 80

5. RJM Design Group, Inc. 80

6. Psomas 77

7. NUVIS 76

8. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 74

9. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

10. Tait & Associates 69

11. KOA 56

12. PacRim Engineering 54

F. Landscape Architect

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Project Manager

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

9 10 11 12

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 11 12 13 15 12 14 15 14 10 13 11

15 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 17 12 12 13

15 15 14 17 15 15 18 15 16 11 15 14

15 15 14 17 0 14 18 0 16 10 0 9

6 5 6 8 5 7 9 3 9 7 3 6

8 10 8 12 0 11 12 10 12 7 10 6

72 70 69 83 49 74 87 60 84 57 53 59

77 56

Psomas KOA

70 69

SVA Architects, Inc. Tait & Associates

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 13 9 14 10 15 12 14 11 12 11 14

16 17 15 18 20 20 17 16 15 18 14 19

17 17 15 18 20 18 17 18 15 20 18 17

18 19 15 18 20 19 17 14 16 19 4 18

8 9 6 9 8 10 7 8 7 9 10 10

12 6 10 12 10 12 12 10 11 13 10 13

84 81 70 89 88 94 82 80 75 91 67 91

1. Minagar & Associates, Inc. 90

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 87

3. Coory Engineering 83

4. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

5. Psomas 78

6. Interwest Consulting Group 78

7. Prescience Corporation 76

8. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 74

9. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

10. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 72

11. SVA Architects, Inc. 66

12. CSG Consultants 65

13. Tait & Associates 65

14. PacRim Engineering 61

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80)

G. Traffic Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

Interwest Consulting Group Minagar & Associates, Inc. Transtech Engineering, Inc. Coory Engineering

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score
SCORING RANGES

78 90 79 83

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 4



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Minagar & Associates, Inc. 90

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 87

3. Coory Engineering 83

4. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

5. Psomas 78

6. Interwest Consulting Group 78

7. Prescience Corporation 76

8. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 74

9. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

10. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 72

11. SVA Architects, Inc. 66

12. CSG Consultants 65

13. Tait & Associates 65

14. PacRim Engineering 61

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

G. Traffic Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 12 10 13 14 14 10 10 10 15 11 15

16 13 13 16 14 15 10 12 11 15 20 20

16 7 14 16 5 16 13 12 12 18 8 18

19 0 14 18 15 16 15 16 13 19 5 18

8 5 6 9 5 9 7 5 7 10 1 10

10 10 10 6 6 9 8 6 7 8 6 11

82 47 67 78 59 79 63 61 60 85 51 92

CSG Consultants D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. PacRim Engineering Prescience Corporation

AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60)

7672 6165

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 4



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Minagar & Associates, Inc. 90

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 87

3. Coory Engineering 83

4. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

5. Psomas 78

6. Interwest Consulting Group 78

7. Prescience Corporation 76

8. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 74

9. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

10. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 72

11. SVA Architects, Inc. 66

12. CSG Consultants 65

13. Tait & Associates 65

14. PacRim Engineering 61

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

G. Traffic Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

9 10 11 12

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

12 10 7 13 11 12 13 15 12 12 11 12

15 15 14 15 14 15 15 14 15 14 18 19

15 18 15 15 15 15 15 12 15 12 14 15

15 16 15 15 5 14 15 0 14 12 16 16

8 8 6 6 6 6 6 8 7 6 6 8

12 6 12 8 6 7 8 0 11 10 10 10

77 73 69 72 57 69 72 49 74 66 75 80

Quantum Consulting, Inc. SVA Architects, Inc.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70)

Below minimally acceptable.

Tait & Associates W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc.

ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

66 65 7473

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 4



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Minagar & Associates, Inc. 90

2. JMDiaz, Inc. 87

3. Coory Engineering 83

4. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 79

5. Psomas 78

6. Interwest Consulting Group 78

7. Prescience Corporation 76

8. W.G. Zimmerman Engineering, Inc. 74

9. Quantum Consulting, Inc 73

10. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 72

11. SVA Architects, Inc. 66

12. CSG Consultants 65

13. Tait & Associates 65

14. PacRim Engineering 61

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

G. Traffic Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

13 14

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 15 14 14 14 14

16 17 17 18 16 19

18 12 16 18 16 18

18 5 16 18 18 18

9 7 9 8 8 9

12 6 12 13 10 13

87 62 84 89 82 91

ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

Psomas JMDiaz, Inc.

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70)

78 87

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 4 of 4



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings
WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 14 11 15 14 13 12 7 10 14 15 14

15 17 16 18 18 18 15 11 14 16 17 17

16 17 16 17 18 18 15 16 15 18 16 16

16 14 15 18 17 18 15 17 15 18 5 16

9 10 9 10 9 10 8 7 6 9 9 9

12 10 12 10 10 12 8 10 8 12 6 12

81 82 79 88 86 89 73 68 68 87 68 84

1. Coast Surveying, Inc. 88

2. Coory Engineering 86

3. CNC Engineering 81

4. Psomas 80

5. JMDiaz, Inc. 80

6. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 78

7. BKF Engineers 77

8. NV5 Inc. 76

9. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 73

10. Prescience Corporation 72

11. GIS Surveyors, Inc. (GSI) 70

12. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

13. Tait & Associates 69

14. CSG Consultants 66

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 66

16. KOA Corporation 62

17. PacRim Engineering 54

Average Score, Written Prop.: 81 88 70

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

H. Surveying & Mapping

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

CNC Engineering Coast Surveying, Inc, GIS Surveyors, Inc. Psomas

80

SCORING RANGES

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings
WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Coast Surveying, Inc. 88

2. Coory Engineering 86

3. CNC Engineering 81

4. Psomas 80

5. JMDiaz, Inc. 80

6. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 78

7. BKF Engineers 77

8. NV5 Inc. 76

9. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 73

10. Prescience Corporation 72

11. GIS Surveyors, Inc. (GSI) 70

12. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

13. Tait & Associates 69

14. CSG Consultants 66

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 66

16. KOA Corporation 62

17. PacRim Engineering 54

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

H. Surveying & Mapping

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 15 13 12 14 11 15 14 14 12 15 14

16 20 18 17 16 15 19 15 16 18 18 19

18 5 18 17 13 15 18 16 15 17 15 18

18 5 17 17 5 16 18 5 17 17 16 19

9 3 8 7 3 7 9 3 8 9 10 10

12 10 12 12 10 11 11 10 12 13 6 13

87 58 86 82 61 75 90 63 82 86 80 93

Transtech Engineering, Inc. Coory EngineeringBKF Engineers

77

SCORING RANGES

73 78 86

Civiltec Engineering, Inc.

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings
WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Coast Surveying, Inc. 88

2. Coory Engineering 86

3. CNC Engineering 81

4. Psomas 80

5. JMDiaz, Inc. 80

6. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 78

7. BKF Engineers 77

8. NV5 Inc. 76

9. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 73

10. Prescience Corporation 72

11. GIS Surveyors, Inc. (GSI) 70

12. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

13. Tait & Associates 69

14. CSG Consultants 66

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 66

16. KOA Corporation 62

17. PacRim Engineering 54

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

H. Surveying & Mapping

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

9 10 11 12

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 12 10 13 14 14 14 11 13 13 15 12

16 10 13 16 10 15 18 20 18 17 15 17

16 14 14 16 0 16 18 11 17 17 16 16

19 5 14 18 7 18 18 7 18 18 0 17

8 3 6 9 0 9 8 5 9 9 5 8

10 6 10 6 6 10 13 10 13 12 10 12

82 50 67 78 37 82 89 64 88 86 61 82

CSG Consultants D R Consultants & Desingers, Inc,.

80 76

JMDiaz, Inc. NV5, Inc.

66 66

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings
WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Coast Surveying, Inc. 88

2. Coory Engineering 86

3. CNC Engineering 81

4. Psomas 80

5. JMDiaz, Inc. 80

6. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 78

7. BKF Engineers 77

8. NV5 Inc. 76

9. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 73

10. Prescience Corporation 72

11. GIS Surveyors, Inc. (GSI) 70

12. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

13. Tait & Associates 69

14. CSG Consultants 66

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 66

16. KOA Corporation 62

17. PacRim Engineering 54

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

H. Surveying & Mapping

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

13 14 15 16

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

10 10 10 15 11 15 13 11 12 13 15 12

10 12 11 15 20 20 15 14 15 16 14 15

13 5 12 18 3 18 15 16 14 17 0 15

15 6 13 19 0 17 15 10 15 17 5 14

7 0 7 10 1 10 6 6 6 8 5 7

8 6 7 8 6 11 8 10 8 12 10 11

63 39 60 85 41 91 72 67 70 83 49 74

69

Tait & Associates

SCORING RANGES

54 72 70

PacRim Engineering Prescience Corporation SVA Architects, Inc.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 4 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings
WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Coast Surveying, Inc. 88

2. Coory Engineering 86

3. CNC Engineering 81

4. Psomas 80

5. JMDiaz, Inc. 80

6. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 78

7. BKF Engineers 77

8. NV5 Inc. 76

9. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 73

10. Prescience Corporation 72

11. GIS Surveyors, Inc. (GSI) 70

12. SVA Architects, Inc. 70

13. Tait & Associates 69

14. CSG Consultants 66

15. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 66

16. KOA Corporation 62

17. PacRim Engineering 54

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

H. Surveying & Mapping

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

17

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

12 13 11

16 12 13

16 14 14

15 5 9

0 5 6

12 6 6

71 55 59

62

KOA Corporation

SCORING RANGES

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 5 of 5



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

12 14 11 14 15 13 15 14 14 15 14 14

17 16 15 16 17 18 19 16 16 19 14 15

17 16 15 16 16 18 18 18 15 18 18 18

17 5 16 17 10 17 18 20 17 18 18 18

7 3 7 10 3 8 9 10 8 9 9 9

12 10 11 12 10 12 11 10 12 11 6 11

82 64 75 85 71 86 90 88 82 90 79 85

1. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 87

2. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 85

3. BKF Engineers 81

4. Psomas 80

5. NV5 Inc. 79

6. Prescience Corporation 78

7. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 74

8. Tait & Associates 72

9. Quantum Consulting, Inc 71

10. SVA Architects, Inc. 67

11. PacRim Engineering 57

12. KOA 52

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

Transtech Engineering, Inc. BKF Engineers Civiltec Engineering, Inc. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc.

SCORING RANGES

81 87

I. Water Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Understanding and Approach

Project Team

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

74 85

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 87

2. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 85

3. BKF Engineers 81

4. Psomas 80

5. NV5 Inc. 79

6. Prescience Corporation 78

7. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 74

8. Tait & Associates 72

9. Quantum Consulting, Inc 71

10. SVA Architects, Inc. 67

11. PacRim Engineering 57

12. KOA 52

I. Water Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Understanding and Approach

Project Team

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 15 12 10 10 10 15 11 15 12 10 7

17 16 17 10 12 11 15 20 20 15 15 14

17 15 16 13 2 12 18 15 18 15 15 15

18 5 17 15 16 13 19 5 18 15 12 15

9 8 8 7 3 7 10 1 10 8 5 6

12 10 12 8 6 7 8 6 11 12 10 12

86 69 82 63 49 60 85 58 92 77 67 69

NV5 Inc.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable.

PacRim Engineering Prescience Corporation

Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

57 78 71

Quantum Consulting, Inc.

SCORING RANGES

79

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. Civiltec Engineering, Inc. 87

2. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 85

3. BKF Engineers 81

4. Psomas 80

5. NV5 Inc. 79

6. Prescience Corporation 78

7. Transtech Engineering, Inc. 74

8. Tait & Associates 72

9. Quantum Consulting, Inc 71

10. SVA Architects, Inc. 67

11. PacRim Engineering 57

12. KOA 52

I. Water Engineering

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Understanding and Approach

Project Team

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

9 10 11 12

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

12 11 12 13 15 12 14 15 14 12 13 11

15 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 17 12 12 14

15 16 15 17 12 15 18 16 16 10 3 13

15 5 14 17 5 14 18 8 16 6 5 9

8 1 6 8 4 7 9 7 9 6 2 6

12 8 7 12 10 11 12 6 12 7 10 6

77 55 69 83 60 74 87 69 84 53 45 59

80 52

Psomas KOA Corporation

SCORING RANGES

67 72

SVA Architects, Inc. Tait & Associates

EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80)

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS 1 2 3 4

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

14 15 15 14 15 14 14 15 13 12 11 14

19 15 18 16 17 17 16 17 18 18 14 19

19 14 19 18 16 16 16 12 18 17 17 17

18 20 20 18 5 10 17 5 17 17 20 18

9 10 9 9 5 6 10 7 8 9 7 10

12 10 13 12 10 10 12 10 12 13 10 13

91 84 94 87 68 73 85 66 86 86 79 91

1. GMU 90

2. Coory Engineering 85

3. BKF Engineers 79

4. Psomas 76

5. Prescience Corporation 75

6. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

7. CSG Consultants 70

8. CivilTec Engineering, Inc. 68

9. KOA 57

Coory Engineering

90 76 79 85

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

GMU Psomas BKF Engineers

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score
SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

J. Geotechnical & Paving

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 1 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. GMU 90

2. Coory Engineering 85

3. BKF Engineers 79

4. Psomas 76

5. Prescience Corporation 75

6. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

7. CSG Consultants 70

8. CivilTec Engineering, Inc. 68

9. KOA 57

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

J. Geotechnical & Paving

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

5 6 7 8

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3 Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

13 12 10 13 14 14 15 11 15 13 13 11

16 10 13 16 14 15 15 20 20 13 12 13

16 16 14 16 5 17 18 5 18 12 14 14

19 5 14 18 14 18 19 5 18 6 5 9

8 9 6 9 4 9 10 0 10 6 4 6

10 10 10 6 6 10 8 6 12 7 6 6

82 62 67 78 57 83 85 47 93 57 54 59

CSG Consultants

70

D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. Prescience Corporation KOA Corporation

73 75 57

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 2 of 3



City of Santa Fe Springs

On-Call Professional Engineering Services 

Evaluation Qualification Ratings

WRITTEN QUALIFICATIONS

1. GMU 90

2. Coory Engineering 85

3. BKF Engineers 79

4. Psomas 76

5. Prescience Corporation 75

6. D R Consultants & Designers, Inc. 73

7. CSG Consultants 70

8. CivilTec Engineering, Inc. 68

9. KOA 57

Firms Written Final Rankings by Average Score

J. Geotechnical & Paving

Criteria

Experience and Capability of the Firm

Project Manager

Project Team

Project Understanding and Approach

Past Experience and References

Pricing

Subtotal Scores:

Average Score, Written Prop.:

9

Reviewer #1 Reviewer #2 Reviewer #3

15 14 14

17 15 16

18 11 15

8 0 5

8 8 8

11 10 12

77 58 70

CivilTec Engineering, Inc.

68

SCORING RANGES

FAIL (0-60) AVERAGE (71-80) EXCEPTIONAL (91-100)

Category evaluated non-

responsive.

Qualifications/Pricing fully 

satisfy requirements.

Qualifications/Pricing far 

exceed requirements.

BELOW AVERAGE (61-70) ABOVE AVERAGE (81-90)

Below minimally acceptable. Qualifications/Pricing more 

than satisfy requirements.

"Total Score" equals the average scores of the written Qualifications (100 points available) Page 3 of 3



CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

WITH

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into this 6TH day of April, 2021, (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF SANTA FE 
SPRINGS, a municipal corporation (“City”), and ___________, a   (“Consultant”). 

W I T N E S S E T H :

WHEREAS, City proposes to utilize the services of Consultant as an independent 
consultant to provide On-Call Engineering Professional Services as more fully described herein; 
and 

WHEREAS, Consultant represents that it has that degree of specialized expertise 
contemplated within California Government Code section 37103, and holds all necessary licenses 
to practice and perform the services herein contemplated; and 

WHEREAS, City and Consultant desire to contract for the specific services described in 
Exhibit “A” (the “Project”) and desire to set forth their rights, duties and liabilities in connection 
with the services to be performed; and 

WHEREAS, no official or employee of City has a financial interest, within the provisions of 
sections 1090-1092 of the California Government Code, in the subject matter of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1.0. SERVICES PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT

1.1. Scope of Services.  Consultant shall provide the professional services described 
in the City’s Request for Proposals (“RFP”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and Consultant’s 
Response to City’s RFP (“Consultant’s Proposal”), attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” both 
incorporated herein by this reference.    

1.2. Professional Practices.  All professional services to be provided by Consultant 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be provided by personnel experienced in their respective fields 
and in a manner consistent with the standards of care, diligence and skill ordinarily exercised by 
professional consultants in similar fields and circumstances in accordance with sound 
professional practices.  Consultant also warrants that it is familiar with all laws that may affect its 
performance of this Agreement and shall advise City of any changes in any laws that may affect 
Consultant’s performance of this Agreement. 

1.3. Performance to Satisfaction of City. Consultant agrees to perform all the work to 
the complete satisfaction of the City and within the hereinafter specified.  Evaluations of the work 
will be done by the City Manager or his or her designee.  If the quality of work is not satisfactory, 
City in its discretion has the right to: 

(a) Meet with Consultant to review the quality of the work and resolve the matters of
concern;



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
2 

(b) Require Consultant to repeat the work at no additional fee until it is satisfactory;
and/or

(c) Terminate the Agreement as hereinafter set forth.

1.4.  Warranty.  Consultant warrants that it shall perform the services required by this 
Agreement in compliance with all applicable Federal and California employment laws, including, 
but not limited to, those laws related to minimum hours and wages; occupational health and 
safety; fair employment and employment practices; workers’ compensation insurance and safety 
in employment; and all other Federal, State and local laws and ordinances applicable to the 
services required under this Agreement.  Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless City from 
and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings, and judgments of every 
nature and description including attorneys’ fees and costs, presented, brought, or recovered 
against City for, or on account of any liability under any of the above-mentioned laws, which may 
be incurred by reason of Consultant’s performance under this Agreement. 

1.5. Non-Discrimination.  In performing this Agreement, Consultant shall not engage in, 
nor permit its agents to engage in, discrimination in employment of persons because of their race, 
religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical 
condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
age, sexual orientation, or military or veteran status, except as permitted pursuant to section 
12940 of the Government Code.   

1.6. Non-Exclusive Agreement.  Consultant acknowledges that City may enter into 
agreements with other consultants for services similar to the services that are subject to this 
Agreement or may have its own employees perform services similar to those services 
contemplated by this Agreement. 

1.7. Delegation and Assignment.  This is a personal service contract, and the duties 
set forth herein shall not be delegated or assigned to any person or entity without the prior written 
consent of City.  Consultant may engage a subcontractor(s) as permitted by law and may employ 
other personnel to perform services contemplated by this Agreement at Consultant’s sole cost 
and expense. 

1.8. Confidentiality.  Employees of Consultant in the course of their duties may have 
access to financial, accounting, statistical, and personnel data of private individuals and 
employees of City.  Consultant covenants that all data, documents, discussion, or other 
information developed or received by Consultant or provided for performance of this Agreement 
are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by Consultant without written authorization by 
City.  City shall grant such authorization if disclosure is required by law.  All City data shall be 
returned to City upon the termination of this Agreement.  Consultant’s covenant under this Section 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

2.0. COMPENSATION AND BILLING

2.1. Compensation.  Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the fee schedule set 
forth in Exhibit “C,” attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement by this reference (the “Fee 
Schedule”).   

2.2. Additional Services.  Consultant shall not receive compensation for any services 



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
3 

provided outside the scope of services specified in the Consultant’s Proposal unless the City or 
the Project Manager for this Project, prior to Consultant performing the additional services, 
approves such additional services in writing.  It is specifically understood that oral requests and/or 
approvals of such additional services or additional compensation shall be barred and are 
unenforceable.   

2.3. Method of Billing.  Consultant may submit invoices to the City for approval on a 
progress basis, but no more often than two times a month.  Said invoice shall be based on the 
total of all Consultant’s services which have been completed to City’s sole satisfaction. City shall 
pay Consultant’s invoice within forty-five (45) days from the date City receives said invoice.  Each 
invoice shall describe in detail, the services performed, the date of performance, and the 
associated time for completion.  Any additional services approved and performed pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be designated as “Additional Services” and shall identify the number of the 
authorized change order, where applicable, on all invoices.    

2.4. Records and Audits.  Records of Consultant’s services relating to this Agreement 
shall be maintained in accordance with generally recognized accounting principles and shall be 
made available to City or its Project Manager for inspection and/or audit at mutually convenient 
times from the Effective Date until three (3) years after termination of this Agreement.   

3.0. TIME OF PERFORMANCE

3.1. Commencement and Completion of Work.  The professional services to be 
performed pursuant to this Agreement shall commence within five (5) days from the Effective Date 
of this Agreement. Failure to commence work in a timely manner and/or diligently pursue work to 
completion may be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  

3.2. Excusable Delays.  Neither party shall be responsible for delays or lack of 
performance resulting from acts beyond the reasonable control of the party or parties.  Such acts 
shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God, fire, strikes, material shortages, compliance with 
laws or regulations, riots, acts of war, or any other conditions beyond the reasonable control of a 
party. 

4.0. TERM AND TERMINATION

4.1. Term.  The Term of this Agreement shall be four (4) years from the Effective Date. 

4.2. Notice of Termination.  The City reserves and has the right and privilege of 
canceling, suspending or abandoning the execution of all or any part of the work contemplated 
by this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time, by providing written notice to Consultant. 
The termination of this Agreement shall be deemed effective upon receipt of the notice of 
termination.  In the event of such termination, Consultant shall immediately stop rendering 
services under this Agreement unless directed otherwise by the City. 

4.3. Compensation.  In the event of termination, City shall pay Consultant for 
reasonable costs incurred and professional services satisfactorily performed up to and including 
the date of City’s written notice of termination.  Compensation for work in progress shall be 
prorated based on the percentage of work completed as of the effective date of termination in 
accordance with the fees set forth herein.  In ascertaining the professional services actually 
rendered hereunder up to the effective date of termination of this Agreement, consideration shall 
be given to both completed work and work in progress, to complete and incomplete drawings, 



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
4 

and to other documents pertaining to the services contemplated herein whether delivered to the 
City or in the possession of the Consultant. 

4.4. Documents.  In the event of termination of this Agreement, all documents prepared 
by Consultant in its performance of this Agreement including, but not limited to, finished or 
unfinished design, development and construction documents, data studies, drawings, maps and 
reports, shall be delivered to the City within ten (10) days of delivery of termination notice to 
Consultant, at no cost to City.  Any use of uncompleted documents without specific written 
authorization from Consultant shall be at City’s sole risk and without liability or legal expense to 
Consultant. 

5.0. INSURANCE

5.1. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain, maintain, and 
keep in full force and effect during the life of this Agreement all of the following minimum scope 
of insurance coverages with an insurance company admitted to do business in California, rated 
“A,” Class X, or better in the most recent Best’s Key Insurance Rating Guide, and approved by 
City: 

(a) Commercial general liability, including premises-operations, products/completed
operations, broad form property damage, blanket contractual liability, independent
consultants, personal injury or bodily injury with a policy limit of not less than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), combined single limits, per occurrence. If such
insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this
Agreement or shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

(b) Business automobile liability for owned vehicles, hired, and non-owned vehicles,
with a policy limit of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), combined
single limits, per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.

(c) Workers’ compensation insurance as required by the State of California.
Consultant agrees to waive, and to obtain endorsements from its workers’
compensation insurer waiving subrogation rights under its workers’ compensation
insurance policy against the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers
arising from work performed by Consultant for the City and to require each of its
subcontractors, if any, to do likewise under their workers’ compensation insurance
policies.

(d) Professional errors and omissions (“E&O”) liability insurance with policy limits of
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), combined single limits, per
occurrence and aggregate.  Architects’ and engineers’ coverage shall be endorsed
to include contractual liability. If the policy is written as a “claims made” policy, the
retro date shall be prior to the start of the contract work. Consultant shall obtain
and maintain, said E&O liability insurance during the life of this Agreement and for
three years after completion of the work hereunder.

5.2. Endorsements.  The commercial general liability insurance policy and business 
automobile liability policy shall contain or be endorsed to contain the following provisions: 

(a) Additional insureds:  “The City of Santa Fe Springs and its elected and appointed
boards, officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers are additional
insureds with respect to: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
5 

of the Consultant pursuant to its contract with the City; products and completed 
operations of the Consultant; premises owned, occupied or used by the 
Consultant; automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the Consultant.” 

(b) Notice:  “Said policy shall not terminate, be suspended, or voided, nor shall it be
cancelled, nor the coverage or limits reduced, until thirty (30) days after written
notice is given to City.”

(c) Other insurance:  “The Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City of Santa Fe Springs, its officers, officials, agents,
employees, and volunteers. Any other insurance maintained by the City of Santa
Fe Springs shall be excess and not contributing with the insurance provided by this
policy.”

(d) Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect
coverage provided to the City of Santa Fe Springs, its officers, officials, agents,
employees, and volunteers.

(e) The Consultant’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom
claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s
liability.

5.3.  Deductible or Self Insured Retention. If any of such policies provide for a deductible 
or self-insured retention to provide such coverage, the amount of such deductible or self-insured 
retention shall be approved in advance by City.  No policy of insurance issued as to which the 
City is an additional insured shall contain a provision which requires that no insured except the 
named insured can satisfy any such deductible or self-insured retention. 

5.4. Certificates of Insurance.  Consultant shall provide to City certificates of insurance 
showing the insurance coverages and required endorsements described above, in a form and 
content approved by City, prior to performing any services under this Agreement.  The certificates 
of insurance shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and incorporated herein by this reference. 

5.5. Non-Limiting.  Nothing in this Section shall be construed as limiting in any way, the 
indemnification provision contained in this Agreement, or the extent to which Consultant may be 
held responsible for payments of damages to persons or property. 

6.0. GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.1. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties with respect to any matter referenced herein and supersedes any and all other prior 
writings and oral negotiations.  This Agreement may be modified only in writing, and signed by 
the parties in interest at the time of such modification.  The terms of this Agreement shall prevail 
over any inconsistent provision in any other contract document appurtenant hereto, including 
exhibits to this Agreement.  

6.2. Representatives. The City Manager or his or her designee shall be the 
representative of City for purposes of this Agreement and may issue all consents, approvals, 
directives and agreements on behalf of the City, called for by this Agreement, except as otherwise 
expressly provided in this Agreement.  



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
6 

Consultant shall designate a representative for purposes of this Agreement who shall be 
authorized to issue all consents, approvals, directives and agreements on behalf of Consultant 
called for by this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement. 

6.3. Project Managers.  City shall designate a Project Manager to work directly with 
Consultant in the performance of this Agreement. 

Consultant shall designate a Project Manager who shall represent it and be its agent in all 
consultations with City during the term of this Agreement.  Consultant or its Project Manager shall 
attend and assist in all coordination meetings called by City. 

6.4. Notices.  Any notices, documents, correspondence or other 
communications concerning this Agreement or the work hereunder may be provided by personal 
delivery or mail and shall be addressed as set forth below.  Such communication shall be deemed 
served or delivered: (a) at the time of delivery if such communication is sent by personal delivery, 
and  (b) 48 hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail as reflected by the official U.S. postmark if such 
communication is sent through regular United States mail. 

IF TO CONSULTANT: IF TO CITY: 

City of Santa Fe Springs 
11710 E. Telegraph Road 
Santa Fe Springs, CA  90670 

Tel: Tel:  (562) 868-0511 
Attn: Attn:  Noe Negrete 

6.5. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event that litigation is brought by any party in connection 
with this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the opposing party all 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the prevailing party in the 
exercise of any of its rights or remedies hereunder or the enforcement of any of the terms, 
conditions, or provisions hereof. 

6.6. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the 
laws of the State of California without giving effect to that body of laws pertaining to conflict of 
laws.  In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the parties hereto 
agree that the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Los 
Angeles, California. 

6.7. Assignment.  Consultant shall not voluntarily or by operation of law assign, 
transfer, sublet or encumber all or any part of Consultant’s interest in this Agreement without 
City’s prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment, transfer, subletting or encumbrance shall 
be void and shall constitute a breach of this Agreement and cause for termination of this 
Agreement. Regardless of City’s consent, no subletting or assignment shall release Consultant 
of Consultant’s obligation to perform all other obligations to be performed by Consultant 
hereunder for the term of this Agreement. 

6.8. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify, 
hold free and harmless the City, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees, at 
Consultant’s sole expense, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits or other legal 
proceedings brought against the City, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees arising 
out of the performance of the Consultant, its employees, and/or authorized subcontractors, of the 



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
7 

work undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.  The defense obligation provided for hereunder shall 
apply without any advance showing of negligence or wrongdoing by the Consultant, its 
employees, and/or authorized subcontractors, but shall be required whenever any claim, action, 
complaint, or suit asserts as its basis the negligence, errors, omissions or misconduct of the 
Consultant, its employees, and/or authorized subcontractors, and/or whenever any claim, action, 
complaint or suit asserts liability against the City, its elected officials, officers, agents and 
employees based upon the work performed by the Consultant, its employees, and/or authorized 
subcontractors under this Agreement, whether or not the Consultant, its employees, and/or 
authorized subcontractors are specifically named or otherwise asserted to be liable. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Consultant shall not be liable for the defense or indemnification 
of the City for claims, actions, complaints or suits arising out of the sole active negligence or willful 
misconduct of the City.  This provision shall supersede and replace all other indemnity provisions 
contained either in the City’s specifications or Consultant’s Proposal, which shall be of no force 
and effect. 

6.9. Independent Contractor.  Consultant is and shall be acting at all times as an 
independent consultant and not as an employee of City.  Consultant shall have no power to incur 
any debt, obligation, or liability on behalf of City or otherwise act on behalf of City as an agent. 
Neither City nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct of Consultant or any of 
Consultant’s employees, except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not, at any time, 
or in any manner, represent that it or any of its agents or employees are in any manner agents or 
employees of City. Consultant shall secure, at its sole expense, and be responsible for any and 
all payment of Income Tax, Social Security, State Disability Insurance Compensation, 
Unemployment Compensation, and other payroll deductions for Consultant and its officers, 
agents, and employees, and all business licenses, if any are required, in connection with the 
services to be performed hereunder. Consultant shall indemnify and hold City harmless from any 
and all taxes, assessments, penalties, and interest asserted against City by reason of the 
independent consultant relationship created by this Agreement. Consultant further agrees to 
indemnify and hold City harmless from any failure of Consultant to comply with the applicable 
worker’s compensation laws. City shall have the right to offset against the amount of any fees due 
to Consultant under this Agreement any amount due to City from Consultant as a result of 
Consultant’s failure to promptly pay to City any reimbursement or indemnification arising under 
this paragraph. 

6.10.  PERS Eligibility Indemnification.   In the event that Consultant or any employee, 
agent, or subcontractor of Consultant providing services under this Agreement claims or is 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of the City, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or employer 
contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees, agents, or 
subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, 
which would otherwise be the responsibility of City. 

Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law or 
ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors 
providing service under this Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby 
agree to waive any claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by City, 
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee of City and entitlement to 
any contribution to be paid by City for employer contribution and/or employee contributions for 
PERS benefits. 



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
8 

6.11. Cooperation. In the event any claim or action is brought against City 
relating to Consultant’s performance or services rendered under this Agreement, Consultant shall 
render any reasonable assistance and cooperation which City might require. 

6.12. Ownership of Documents.  All findings, reports, documents, information and data 
including, but not limited to, computer tapes or discs, files and tapes furnished or prepared by 
Consultant or any of its subcontractors in the course of performance of this Agreement, shall be 
and remain the sole property of City.  Consultant agrees that any such documents or information 
shall not be made available to any individual or organization without the prior consent of City.  Any 
use of such documents for other projects not contemplated by this Agreement, and any use of 
incomplete documents, shall be at the sole risk of City and without liability or legal exposure to 
Consultant.  City shall indemnify and hold harmless Consultant from all claims, damages, losses, 
and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from City’s use of such 
documents for other projects not contemplated by this Agreement or use of incomplete documents 
furnished by Consultant.  Consultant shall deliver to City any findings, reports, documents, 
information, data, in any form, including but not limited to, computer tapes, discs, files audio tapes 
or any other Project related items as requested by City or its authorized representative, at no 
additional cost to the City. 

6.13. Public Records Act Disclosure.  Consultant has been advised and is aware that 
this Agreement and all reports, documents, information and data, including, but not limited to, 
computer tapes, discs or files furnished or prepared by Consultant, or any of its subcontractors, 
pursuant to this Agreement and provided to City may be subject to public disclosure as required 
by the California Public Records Act (California Government Code section 6250 et seq.). 
Exceptions to public disclosure may be those documents or information that qualify as trade 
secrets, as that term is defined in the California Government Code section 6254.7, and of which 
Consultant informs City of such trade secret. The City will endeavor to maintain as confidential all 
information obtained by it that is designated as a trade secret. The City shall not, in any way, be 
liable or responsible for the disclosure of any trade secret including, without limitation, those 
records so marked if disclosure is deemed to be required by law or by order of the Court.   

6.14. Conflict of Interest.  Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and 
subconsultants, if any, will comply with all conflict of interest statutes of the State of California 
applicable to Consultant's services under this agreement, including, but not limited to, the Political 
Reform Act (Government Code sections 81000, et seq.) and Government Code section 1090. 
During the term of this Agreement, Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and 
subconsultants shall not, without the prior written approval of the City Representative, perform 
work for another person or entity for whom Consultant is not currently performing work that would 
require Consultant or one of its officers, employees, associates or subconsultants to abstain from 
a decision under this Agreement pursuant to a conflict of interest statute. 

6.15. Responsibility for Errors.  Consultant shall be responsible for its work and results 
under this Agreement.  Consultant, when requested, shall furnish clarification and/or explanation 
as may be required by the City’s representative, regarding any services rendered under this 
Agreement at no additional cost to City.  In the event that an error or omission attributable to 
Consultant occurs, then Consultant shall, at no cost to City, provide all necessary design 
drawings, estimates and other Consultant professional services necessary to rectify and correct 
the matter to the sole satisfaction of City and to participate in any meeting required with regard to 
the correction. 

6.16. Prohibited Employment.  Consultant will not employ any regular employee of City 



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
9 

while this Agreement is in effect. 

6.17. Order of Precedence.  In the event of an inconsistency in this Agreement and any 
of the attached Exhibits, the terms set forth in this Agreement shall prevail. If, and to the extent 
this Agreement incorporates by reference any provision of any document, such provision shall be 
deemed a part of this Agreement.  Nevertheless, if there is any conflict among the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and those of any such provision or provisions so incorporated by 
reference, this Agreement shall govern over the document referenced. 

6.18. Costs.  Each party shall bear its own costs and fees incurred in the preparation 
and negotiation of this Agreement and in the performance of its obligations hereunder except as 
expressly provided herein. 

6.19. No Third Party Beneficiary Rights.  This Agreement is entered into for the sole 
benefit of City and Consultant and no other parties are intended to be direct or incidental 
beneficiaries of this Agreement and no third party shall have any right in, under or to this 
Agreement. 

6.20. Headings.  Paragraphs and subparagraph headings contained in this Agreement 
are included solely for convenience and are not intended to modify, explain or to be a full or 
accurate description of the content thereof and shall not in any way affect the meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement.   

6.21. Construction.  The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting 
of this Agreement.  In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises with 
respect to this Agreement, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties 
and in accordance with its fair meaning.  There shall be no presumption or burden of proof favoring 
or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

6.22.  Amendments.  Only a writing executed by the parties hereto or their respective 
successors and assigns may amend this Agreement. 

6.23. Waiver.  The delay or failure of either party at any time to require performance or 
compliance by the other of any of its obligations or agreements shall in no way be deemed a 
waiver of those rights to require such performance or compliance.  No waiver of any provision of 
this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative 
of the party against whom enforcement of a waiver is sought.  The waiver of any right or remedy 
in respect to any occurrence or event shall not be deemed a waiver of any right or remedy in 
respect to any other occurrence or event, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver.   

6.24. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable in any circumstance, such determination shall not 
affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or of the offending 
provision in any other circumstance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the value of this 
Agreement, based upon the substantial benefit of the bargain for any party, is materially impaired, 
which determination made by the presiding court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction shall be 
binding, then both parties agree to substitute such provision(s) through good faith negotiations. 

6.25.   Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original.  All counterparts shall be construed together and shall 
constitute one agreement. 



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
10 

6.26. Corporate Authority. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties hereto warrant that they are duly authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of said 
parties and that by doing so the parties hereto are formally bound to the provisions of this 
Agreement. 



Ver. 04/2019 On-Call Professional Engineering Services 
11 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by and through their respective authorized officers, as of the date first above written. 

CONSULTANT

Date: 
Signature, Title 

Type or Print Name Social Security or Taxpayer ID Number 

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

Date: 
John M. Mora, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Janet Martinez, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Date: 
Ivy Tsai, City Attorney 



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 
20192019 

Report Submitted By:  Fire Chief Brent Hayward Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
 Department of Fire-Rescue 

CCiittyy  ooff  SSaannttaa  FFee  SSpprriinnggss  

NEW BUSINESS 
Acceptance of State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) Funds for the 
Purchase of Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) for the Department of Fire-Rescue 

BACKGROUND 

The 2018 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) has a performance 
period of three years and closes for spending in March of 2021, but has been extended 
for an additional forty-five (45) days to complete additional purchases and take 
advantages of unused funds for “quick turnaround” projects (completed sales and 
receipt of equipment in 60 days). The 2018 grant has awarded funds for the purchase 
of seven (7) GETAC Mobile Data Computers (MDCs) and associated equipment for 
the Department of Fire-Rescue’s response apparatus. 

All Fire apparatus are outfitted with radio systems and MDCs. MDCs for police and fire 
apparatus are specialized mobile computers that are mounted on the apparatus and 
when calls are dispatched, all pertinent information is transmitted to the MDC from our 
dispatch communications center, Downey Communications Center (DCC). When a 
call is dispatched, information on the location, nature of the emergency, map, cross-
streets, hydrant locations, contact information, call-back numbers, medical 
information, codes for locked gates, and notes from dispatchers are just a few pieces 
of information transmitted to crews during the initial dispatch, and updated while 
responding.   

Along with mapping systems, there is the ability to know (from previously input 
information from inspections) what kinds of hazardous materials are stored in 
buildings, locations of utility shut-offs, contact information for the business, and many 
other features that increase firefighter and public safety. During active incidents, the 
MDC can be utilized for information retrieval, as it has wi-fi capabilities and access to 
internet to obtain information on Hazardous Materials and many other emergency 
information needs. 

The seven (7) MDCs purchased will replace MDCs on our apparatus that are over ten-
years in age and identified for replacement due to intermittent reliability issues and for 
technology upgrades. While the quantity of MDCs exceeds seven (7) for the 
Department’s needs, this grant award helps begin the replacement process. New 
Apparatus will also have new MDCs, and securing this funding helps the Department 
accomplish our mission for public safety. 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
Accept 2018 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) funds in the 
amount of $30,045.28 and authorize the purchase of seven (7) GETAC Mobile 
Data Computers (MDCs) and associated equipment from DuraTech USA, Inc. 

ITEM NO. 14



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 
20192019 

Report Submitted By:  Fire Chief Brent Hayward Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
 Department of Fire-Rescue 

CCiittyy  ooff  SSaannttaa  FFee  SSpprriinnggss  

The mobile data computer bids below include the computer mounted inside the 
vehicle that is used as an information database and communication between 
dispatch and other emergency response vehicles. DuraTech USA, Inc. is the 
recommended vendor for the purchase of this equipment. Below is a summary of 
bids for equipment. 

Mobile Data Computer (MDC) (Vendor and Bid amount) 
DuraTech USA, Inc. $ 30,045.28 
CDW-G $ 32,052.48 
MRC Mobile Rugged Computers $ 34,564.04 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The 2018 State Homeland Security Grant (SHSGP) is a 100% reimbursable grant. 
 There will be no fiscal impact to the General Fund. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment(s) 
DuraTech USA, Inc. Quotation 
GETAC Technical literature, Getac A140 
GETAC Technical literature, Getac F110 







A140
FULLY
RUGGED
TABLET

14’’ FHD / HD LumiBond® 2.0 Display with
Getac Sunlight Readable Technology for
unprecedented viewing experience

Dual battery design with LifeSupport™ Battery 
Swappable Technology

Enhanced Security with TPM2.0, NFC / RFID
and Fingerprint Scanner

Optional 1D / 2D Imager Barcode Reader and RFID 

Multi-Function Hard Handle, Hand Straps and 
Shoulder Straps and Slim-Profile Vehicle Dock 
for maximum mobile productivity

Trolley Dock A140 with Multi-Function
Hard Handle as Kickstand

Rugged Mobile Computing Solutions

Getac recommends 
Windows 10 Pro 
for business

Headphone out / 
mic-in Combo

(Optional)
1D/2D Imager 
Barcode Reader

(Optional) 
Camera

(Optional) 
FHD Webcam USB 2.0 

Smart Card Reader

Kensington Lock

Docking Connector

(Optional) 
Tri Antenna Pass-through 
(GPS, WWAN, WLAN)

DC in Jack
LAN

(Optional) Micro SD

USB 3.1 (Type-A)
USB 3.1 (Type-C)

HDMI

(Optional) 
Fingerprint Scanner or
RFID Reader or RS232



Specifications A140
Operating System
Windows 10 Pro

Mobile Computing Platform
Intel® Core™ i5-10210U Processor 1.6GHz
Max. 4.2GHz with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology
- 6MB Intel® Smart Cache
Platform Options:
Intel® Core™ i5-10310U Processor 1.7GHz
Max. 4.4GHz with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology
- 6MB Intel® Smart Cache
Intel® Core™ i7-10510U Processor 1.8GHz
Max. 4.9GHz with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology
- 8MB Intel® Smart Cache
Intel® Core™ i7-10610U Processor 1.8GHz
Max. 4.9GHz with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology
- 8MB Intel® Smart Cache

VGA Controller
Intel® UHD Graphics 

Display
14" TFT LCD HD (1366 x 768)
Protection film
1000 nits LumiBond® display with Getac sunlight 
readable technology
Capacitive multi-touch screen
Optional: 14" IPS TFT LCD FHD (1920 x 1080)
800nits LumiBond® display with Getac sunlight 
readable technology and capacitive multi-touch screen

Storage & Memory
8GB DDR4
Optional: 16GB / 32GB DDR4
256GB PCIe NVMe SSD
Optional: 512GB / 1TB PCIe NVMe SSD 

Keyboard
Power button
7 tablet programmable buttons

Pointing Device
Touchscreen
- Capacitive multi-touch screen

Expansion Slot 
LAN (RJ45) x 1
Optional: 1D / 2D imager barcode reader
Optional: Serial port, i or HF RFID, or fingerprint 
scanner, or HF RFID+fingerprint scanner

I/O Interface
Headphone out / mic-in combo x 1
DC in Jack x 1
USB 2.0 x 1
USB 3.2 Gen 2 Type-A x 1
USB 3.2 Gen 2 Type-C x 1
HDMI x 1
Docking Connector x 1
Optional: FHD webcam x 1
Optional: RF antenna pass-through for GPS, 
WLAN and WWAN
Optional: 8M pixels auto focus rear camera x 1

Communication Interface
10/100/1000 base-T Ethernet x 1
Intel® Wi-Fi 6 AX201, 802.11ax
Bluetooth (v5.1)i
Optional: Dedicated GPSii

Optional: 4G LTE mobile broadband

Security Feature
TPM 2.0
Smart Card reader
Kensington Lock
Optional: HF RFID
Opional: Fingerprint reader

Power
AC adapter (65W, 100-240VAC, 50 / 60Hz)
Li-Ion smart battery (10.8V, typical 3220mAh; 
min. 3120mAh) x 2
LifeSupport™ battery swappable technology

Dimension (W x D x H) & Weight
369 x 248 x 32.5 mm (14.58" x 9.76" x 1.279"), 
2.3 kg (5.07 lbs)iii

Rugged Feature
MIL-STD-810H certified and IP65 certified
MIL-STD-461G certifiediv

Vibration & 4 feet drop resistant
e-Mark certified for vehicle usage
Optional: ANSI / ISA 12.12.01

Environmental Specification
Temperaturev:
- Operating: -29°C to 63°C / -20°F to 145°F
- Storage: -51°C to 71°C / -60°F to 160°F

Humidity: 
- 95% RH, non-condensing

Fully Rugged
Tablet

Pre-installed Software
Getac Utility
Getac Camera
Getac Geolocation
Getac Barcode Managervi

Optional: Absolute Persistence®

Accessories
Battery (11.1V, typical 2100mAh; min. 2040mAh)
AC Adapter (65W, 100-240VAC)
Capacitive Stylus
Optional:
Carry Bag
Battery (11.1V, typical 2100mAh; min. 2040mAh)
Multi-bay Charger (Dual Bay)
Multi-Bay Charger (Eight-Bay)
AC Adapter (65W, 100-240VAC)
Office Dock AC Adapter (90W, 100-240VAC)
MIL-STD-461 Certified AC Adapter (90W, 
115-230VAC)
Vehicle Adapter (120W, 11-32VDC)
Capacitive Stylus
Protection Film 
X Strap 
Shoulder Strap (2-point)
Vehicle Dock
Office Dock
100W Type-C Adaptor vii

Bumper-to-Bumper Warranty
Accidents can take your equipment out of 
service when you least expect it, especially in a 
rugged environment, which can cause costly 
equipment downtime.
That is why Getac has introduced accidental 
damage as standard under our Bumper-to-Bumper
warranty, to help minimize your enterprise IT costs.
Bumper-to-Bumper is your hassle-free guarantee.
That means you can depend on us to have your 
unit back in service within days.
Standard
3 years Bumper-to-Bumper

i Bluetooth performance and connectable 
distance may be subject to interference with 
the environments and performance on client 
devices, users may be able to reduce effects of 
interference by minimizing the number of 
active Bluetooth wireless devices that is 
operating in the area.

ii Supports GPS and Glonass.
iii Weight varies from configurations and 

optional accessories.
iv MIL-STD-461G 90W AC adapter sold separately.
v Tested by a national independent third party 

test lab following MIL-STD-810H.
vi Available when barcode reader option is selected.
vii Do not support the configurations with 

Discrete Graphic Card.

Docking Solutions

Vehicle Dock Office Dock

Serial Port 1 1

Display Port -- 1

External VGA 1 --

Microphone 1 1

Audio Output 1 1

USB USB x 4 USB x 3

LAN 1 1

HDMI 1 1

Printer Port -- 1

RF Antenna  Connector 3 (WWAN,
WLAN, GPS) --

DC in Jack 1 1

15495 Sand Canyon Ave. Suite 350
Irvine, CA 92618
Tel : 949-681-2900
GetacSales_US@getac.com  I  www.getac.com/us/

Copyright © 2021 Getac Technology Corporation and/or any of its affiliates. All Rights Reserved. 
Information provided herewith is for reference only, 
available specification shall be subjected to quotation by request.  V01M02Y21US

Getac USAGetac USA



F110
FULLY
RUGGED
TABLET

Enhanced Enterprise Security with optional 
Intel vPro, Windows Hello face-authentication 
camera, TPM 2.0 and many more multi-factor
authentication options

8th Generation Intel® Core™ i7 / i5 Processor

11.6” LumiBond® 2.0 Display with Getac 
Sunlight Readable Technology and Capacitive 
Touchscreen

6 configurable options to fit diverse data 
collection needs: Optional 1D / 2D Imager 
Barcode Reader / Serial Port / Ethernet / 2nd USB 
(USB 2.0) Port / Serial Port + Ethernet

LifeSupport™ Battery Swappable Technology

Office Dock

Rugged Mobile Computing Solutions

Power Button
Camera Capture / Barcode Reader Trigger

Function Key
Volume Up

Volume Down

Kensington Lock

Windows

Docking Connector

Tri Antenna Pass-through
(GPS, WWAN, WLAN) 

DC in Jack

Headphone Out / Mic-in Combo

HDMI
USB 3.2 Gen 2 Type-A 

(Optional) 1D / 2D imager barcode
reader, or Serial port, or Ethernet,

or USB 2.0 port,
 or Serial port + Ethernet

8 MP Rear
Camera

FHD Webcam / 
(Optional) Windows Hello 

Face-authentication Camera

Getac recommends 
Windows 10 Pro 
for business



Specifications F110
Operating System
Windows 10 Pro

Mobile Computing Platform
Intel® Core™ i5-8265U Processor 1.6GHz
Max. 3.9GHz with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology 
- 6MB Intel® Smart Cache
Platform Options:
Intel® Core™ i5-8365U vPro™ Processor 1.6GHz
Max. 4.1GHz with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology 
- 6MB Intel® Smart Cache
Intel® Core™ i7-8565U Processor 1.8GHz
Max. 4.6GHz with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology 
- 8MB Intel® Smart Cache
Intel® Core™ i7-8665U vPro™ Processor 1.9GHz
Max. 4.8GHz  with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology 
- 8MB Intel® Smart Cache

VGA Controller
Intel® UHD Graphics

Display
11.6" IPS TFT LCD FHD (1920 x 1080)
Protection film
800 nits LumiBond® display with Getac sunlight 
readable technology
Capacitive multi-touch screen

Storage & Memory
8GB DDR4 
Optional: 16GB / 32GB DDR4
256GB SATA SSD
Optional: 512GB / 1TB SATA SSD
Optional: 256GB / 512GB / 1TB PCIe NVMe SSD

Keyboard
Power button
5 tablet programmable buttons

Pointing Device
Touchscreen
- Capacitive multi-touch screen 
- Optional: Dual mode touchscreen (multi-touch

and digitizer)

Expansion Slot 
Optional: 1D / 2D imager barcode reader, or serial 
port, or LAN (RJ45), or USB 2.0 port, or serial port 
+ LAN (RJ45)i

I/O Interface
FHD webcam x 1x

8M pixels auto focus rear camera x 1
Headphone out / mic-in combo x 1
DC in Jack x 1
USB 3.2 Gen 2 Type-A x 1
HDMI x 1
Docking Connector x 1
Optional: Windows Hello face-authentication 
camera (front-facing) x 1x

Optional: RF antenna pass-through for GPS, 
WLAN and WWAN

Communication Interface
Intel® Dual Band Wireless-AC 9260, 802.11ac
Bluetooth (v5.1)ii
Optional: Dedicated GPS
Optional: 4G LTE mobile broadband
Optional 10/100/1000 base-T Etherneti (occupies 
expansion slot)

Security Feature
TPM 2.0
Kensington Lock
Optional: Intel® vPro™ Technology
Optional: LF/HF RFID readeriii, iv, v, or HF RFID 
readervi , or smart card reader, or fingerprint scanner

Power
AC adapter (65W, 100-240VAC, 50 / 60Hz)
Li-Ion smart battery (11.4V, typical 2160mAh; 
min. 2100mAh) x 2
LifeSupport™ battery swappable technology

Dimension (W x D x H) & Weight
314 x 207 x 24.5 mm (12.4" x 8.15" x 0.96"), 
1.39 kg (3.08 lbs)vii

Rugged Feature
MIL-STD-810H certified 
IP65 certified
MIL-STD-461G certifiedviii

Vibration & 4 feet drop resistant
e-Mark certified for vehicle usage
Optional: ANSI / UL 121201, CSA C22.2 NO. 213xii

Environmental Specification
Temperatureix:
- Operating: -29°C to 63°C / -20°F to 145°F
- Storage: -51°C to 71°C / -60°F to 160°F

Humidity: 
- 95% RH, non-condensing

Fully Rugged
Tablet

Pre-installed Software
Getac Utility
Getac Camera
Getac Geolocation
Getac Barcode Managerxi

Optional: Absolute Persistence®

Accessories
Battery (11.4V, typcial 2160mAh; min. 2100mAh)
AC Adapter (65W, 100-240VAC)
Capacitive Stylus
Optional:
Carry Bag
Tablet Folio Case
Battery (11.4V, typcial 2160mAh; min. 2100mAh)
Multi-Bay Charger (Dual Bay)
Multi-Bay Charger (Eight Bay)
Detachable Folding Keyboard
AC Adapter (65W, 100-240VAC)
Office Dock AC Adapter (90W, 100-240VAC)
MIL-STD-461 Certified AC Adapter (90W, 
115-230VAC)
Vehicle Adapter (120W, 11-32VDC)
Digitizer Pen
Capacitive Stylus
Protection Film
Hand Strap
Shoulder Strap (2-point)
Shoulder Harness (4-point; handsfree)
Vehicle Cradle
Vehicle Dock
Office Dock
Office Dock with Twin Battery Charger

Bumper-to-Bumper Warranty
Accidents can take your equipment out of service 
when you least expect it, especially in a rugged 
environment, which can cause costly equipment 
downtime.
That is why Getac has introduced accidental 
damage as standard under our Bumper-to-Bumper
warranty, to help minimize your enterprise IT costs.
Bumper-to-Bumper is your hassle-free guarantee.
That means you can depend on us to have your 
unit back in service within days.
Standard
3 years Bumper-to-Bumper

i Barcode reader, serial port, Ethernet, 2nd USB 
(USB 2.0) port, or serial port + Ethernet are 
mutually exclusive options.

ii Bluetooth performance and connectable 
distance may be subject to interference with 
the environments and performance on client 
devices, users may be able to reduce effects of 
interference by minimizing the number of 
active Bluetooth wireless devices that is 
operating in the area.

iii LF / HF RFID reader, HF RFID reader, smart card 
reader and fingerprint scanner are mutually 
exclusive options.

iv LF (125kHz) / HF (13.56MHz) Combo RFID / 
NFC reader ( iClass, HID Prox, ISO 15693, 
14443 A / B, Mifare and FeliCa™compliant).

v LF/HF RFID reader option is not Energy Star 8.0 
compliant.

vi 13.56MHz Contactless HF RFID reader 
(ISO 15693, 14443 A / B, Mifare and FeliCa™ 
compliant).

vii Weight and dimensions vary from 
configurations and optional accessories.

viii MIL-STD-461G 90W AC adapter sold separately.
ix Tested by a national independent third party 

test lab following MIL-STD-810H.
x FHD webcam and optional Windows Hello 

face-authentication camera (front-facing) are 
mutually exclusive options.

xi Available when barcode reader option is selected.
xii Available with limited configurations.

Docking Solutions

Vehicle Dock Office Dock

Serial Port 2 2

External VGA 1 1

Microphone 1 1

Audio Output 1 1

USB 4 4

LAN 1 1

HDMI 1 1

RF Antenna  Connector 3 (GPS,
WWAN, WLAN) --

DC in Jack 1 1

15495 Sand Canyon Ave. Suite 350
Irvine, CA 92618
Tel : 949-681-2900
GetacSales_US@getac.com  I  www.getac.com/us/

Copyright © 2021 Getac Technology Corporation and/or any of its affiliates. All Rights Reserved. 
Information provided herewith is for reference only, 
available specification shall be subjected to quotation by request.  V01M02Y21US

Getac USAGetac USA



City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

NEW BUSINESS 
Tree Maintenance Services - Award of Contract 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
The City Council awarded a two-year On-Call Tree Maintenance Services contract to 
West Coast Arborist (WCA) effective April 13, 2017.  The contract contained a 
stipulation allowing the City Council to renew the contract for an additional two years 
at the end of the first term, based on performance and approval by the City Council. 
On April 13, 2018, the City Council awarded the additional two-year extension.  The 
current contract will expire on April 13, 2021, without the option to further extend the 
contract.   

On December 10, 2020, the City Council authorized the advertisement for Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for Tree Maintenance Services, to allow the City to award a contract 
to a contractor that best meets the City's Tree Maintenance requirements based on 
their qualifications and experience in performing similar work. City staff received a total 
of five proposals on January 21, 2021, from the following tree maintenance contractors: 

1. International Environmental Corp
2. Mariposa Tree Management, Inc.
3. North Star Land Care
4. Tiger Tree Services, Inc.
5. West Coast Arborists, Inc.

Staff conducted follow-up interviews with the three top-rated firms.  The interviews 
included the following criterion: Contractors capabilities of providing required tree 
maintenance services, proper equipment, and personnel to provide those services, 
and a history of providing the services to other municipalities. A summary of the three 
top-rated firms is shown below.  

• West Coast Arborists has been in business for close to 50 years, with approximately
330 municipal contracts, over 1,000 field staff, over 100 vehicles available for
maintenance of trees, and over 85 Certified Arborists on staff. Currently, WCA is
the Cities Tree Maintenance Contractor.

• Mariposa Tree Management has been in business for nearly 2 years with 10
municipal contracts, 50 field staff, has vehicles available to perform necessary
works, and has 4 available Certified Arborists on staff.

RECOMMENDATION 
• Accept the proposals;
• Award a contract to West Coast Arborists, Inc. from Anaheim, California for Tree 

Maintenance Services.

ITEM NO. 15



Tree Maintenance Services – Award of Contract Page 2 of 2 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

North Star has been in business since 2018 with 9 municipal contracts, 16 field staff, 
has access to proper vehicles in inventory to provide necessary services, and has 3 
available Certified Arborists on staff. 

A three-member evaluation team reviewed each proposal based on project-specific 
criteria, such as the experience and capability of the firm, ability to perform work with 
appropriate staff and equipment, quality of work performed, and total fee proposed / 
bid schedule of rates.   

The evaluation team consisted of Joe Barrios (Transportation Supervisor), Kevin 
Periman (Municipal Services Manager), and Eric Borunda (Streets and Grounds 
Supervisor).  Upon evaluating the proposals, staff determined that West Coast 
Arborists is the contractor best qualified and equipped to provide tree maintenance 
services.  Attached is a summary of the evaluation teams’ rankings of the proposals. 
The proposals submitted to the City and the evaluation score sheets are on file with 
the Public Works Department. 

LEGAL REVIEW 
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT  
Proposed funding for the Tree Maintenance Services is included in the Department of 
Public Works budget. 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPACT 
The City’s tree maintenance program provides for the general upkeep of the existing 
inventory of approximately 7,000 trees and allows for tree replacement of damaged, 
dead and diseased trees. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachments: 
Attachment No. 1:  Evaluation Summary 
Attachment No. 2:  Agreement 



TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES
Summary Evaluation Sheet

Criteria Reviewer 
#1

Reviewer 
#2

Reviewer 
#3

Reviewer 
#1

Reviewer 
#2

Reviewer 
#3

Reviewer 
#1

Reviewer 
#2

Reviewer 
#3

Expereince and Capability of the Firm 29 30 30 25 25 25 20 23 25
Perform work with staff and equipment 10 10 10 10 10 10 7 5 6
Quality of work performed through references 10 10 10 8 6 8 7 7 7
Annual Total Fee Proposal 43 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45

Score Subtotals: 92 95 95 88 86 88 79 80 83
Average Scores:

West Coast Arborists

94

Mariposa North Star

87 81

















































































































































 

EXHIBIT C 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Without limiting Contractor’s indemnification of the City, and prior to commencement of 
Services, Contractor shall obtain, provide, and maintain at its own expense during the 
term of this Agreement, policies of insurance of the type and amounts described below 
and in a form satisfactory to the City. If the Contractor maintains higher limits than the 
minimum limits shown below, the City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the 
higher limits maintained by the Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess 
of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City. 
 
General liability insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general liability 
insurance with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CG 00 01, 
in an amount not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence, $10,000,000 general aggregate, 
for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, including, without limitation, 
blanket contractual liability, and a $5,000,000 completed operations aggregate. The 
policy must include contractual liability that has not been amended. Any endorsement 
restricting standard ISO “insured contract” language will not be accepted.  
 
Automobile liability insurance. Contractor shall maintain automobile insurance at least 
as broad as Insurance Services Office form CA 00 01 covering Code 1 (any auto), with 
limits no less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage and to 
be endorsed to include pollution liability (written on form CA9948 or its exact equivalent). 
If such endorsement is not available, then a stand-alone Transportation Pollution Liability 
policy is required.  
 
Workers’ compensation insurance. Contractor shall maintain Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer’s Liability Insurance (with limits of at least 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease).  
 
Contractor shall submit to the City, along with the certificate of insurance, a Waiver of 
Subrogation endorsement in favor of the City, its officers, agents, employees, and 
volunteers. 
 
Umbrella or excess liability insurance. Contractor shall obtain and maintain an 
umbrella or excess liability insurance policy with limits that will provide bodily injury, 
personal injury and property damage liability coverage at least as broad as the primary 
coverages set forth above, including commercial general liability, automobile liability, and 
employer’s liability. Such policy or policies shall include the following terms and 
conditions: 
 

• A drop-down feature requiring the policy to respond if any primary insurance 
that would otherwise have applied proves to be uncollectible in whole or in 
part for any reason;  

• Pay on behalf of wording as opposed to reimbursement;   



 

• Concurrency of effective dates with primary policies;  
• Policies shall “follow form” to the underlying primary policies; and 
• Insureds under primary policies shall also be insureds under the umbrella 

or excess policies. 
 
Other provisions or requirements 
 
Proof of insurance. Contractor shall provide certificates of insurance to the City as 
evidence of the insurance coverage required herein, along with a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement for workers’ compensation. Insurance certificates and endorsements must 
be approved by the City’s Risk Manager prior to commencement of performance. Current 
certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times during the term of 
this Agreement. The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies at any time.  
 
Duration of coverage. Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which 
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder by 
Contractor, or Contractor’s agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  
 
Primary/noncontributing. Coverage provided by Contractor shall be primary and any 
insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the CIty shall not be required to 
contribute with it. The limits of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a 
combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess 
insurance shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall 
also apply on a primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of the City before the 
City’s own insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named 
insured. 
 
The City’s rights of enforcement. In the event any policy of insurance required under 
this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, 
the City has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any 
premium paid by the City will be promptly reimbursed by Contractor or the City will 
withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Contractor payments. In the alternative, 
the City may immediately terminate this Agreement. 
 
Acceptable insurers. All insurance policies shall be issued by an insurance company 
currently authorized by the Insurance Commissioner to transact business of insurance or 
is on the List of Approved Surplus Line Insurers in the State of California, with an assigned 
policyholders’ Rating of A- (or higher) and Financial Size Category Class VII (or larger) in 
accordance with the latest edition of Best’s Key Rating Guide, unless otherwise approved 
by the City’s Risk Manager. 
 
Waiver of subrogation. All insurance coverage maintained or procured pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against the City, its elected or 
appointed officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow 



 

Contractor or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications 
to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. Contractor hereby waives its own right of 
recovery against the City, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance 
clauses from each of its subcontractors. 
 
Enforcement of Agreement provisions (non estoppel). Contractor acknowledges and 
agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City to inform Contractor of 
non-compliance with any requirement imposes no additional obligations on the City nor 
does it waive any rights hereunder. 
 
Requirements not limiting. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits 
contained in this Agreement are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other 
requirements, or a waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific 
reference to a given coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to 
a given issue and is not intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the 
exclusion of other coverage, or a waiver of any type.  
 
Notice of cancellation. Contractor agrees to oblige its insurance agent or broker and 
insurers to provide to the City with a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation (except for 
nonpayment for which a ten (10) day notice is required) or nonrenewal of coverage for 
each required coverage. 
 
Additional insured status. General liability policies shall provide or be endorsed to 
provide that the City and its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be 
additional insureds under such policies. This provision shall also apply to any 
excess/umbrella liability policies. 
 
Prohibition of undisclosed coverage limitations. None of the coverages required 
herein will be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting 
endorsement of any kind that has not been first submitted to the City and approved of in 
writing. 
 
Separation of insureds. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional 
insureds ensuring that Contractor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limits 
of liability. The policy(ies) shall not contain any cross-liability exclusions. 
 
Pass through clause. Contractor agrees to ensure that its subcontractors, and any other 
party involved with the Services who is brought onto or involved in the Services by 
Contractor, provide the same minimum insurance coverage and endorsements required 
of Contractor. Contractor agrees to monitor and review all such coverage and assumes 
all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in conformity with the 
requirements of this section. Contractor agrees that upon request, all agreements with 
contractors, subcontractors, and others engaged in the Services will be submitted to the 
City review. 
 



 

The City’s right to revise specifications. The City reserves the right at any time during 
the term of the Agreement to change the amounts and types of insurance required by 
giving Contractor ninety (90) days advance written notice of such change. If such change 
results in substantial additional cost to Contractor, the City and Contractor may 
renegotiate Contractor’s compensation or come to some other agreement to address the 
additional cost. 
 
Self-insured retentions. Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved 
by the City. The City reserves the right to require that self-insured retentions be 
eliminated, lowered, or replaced by a deductible. Self-insurance will not be considered to 
comply with these specifications unless approved by the City.  
 
Timely notice of claims. Contractor shall give the City prompt and timely notice of claims 
made or suits instituted that arise out of or result from Contractor’s performance under 
this Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the required 
liability policies. 
 
Additional insurance. Contractor shall also procure and maintain, at its own cost and 
expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be necessary 
for its proper protection and prosecution of the Services.   

 



Report Submitted By:  Maribel Garcia, Sr. Mngt. Analyst, Date of Report: April 2, 2021 
City Manager’s Office 

City of Santa Fe Springs
   City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

COUNCILMEMBER REQUESTED ITEM 
Santa Fe High School Graduation Banner Support 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
At the request of Mayor Pro Tem Annette Rodriguez, staff has been asked to place 
a City Council item on its agenda in order to decide if it would be interested in 
funding the establishment of a Santa Fe High School Graduation Banner Project. 
Approximately five (5) years ago, the same banner program was explored, 
however, after further analysis it was considered being too costly and the program 
was tabled. 

Mayor Pro Tem Rodriguez after being appointed by the City Council to the Santa 
Fe High School Education Foundation has been working with the school’s Principal 
and Vice Principal to move this project forward in order to properly honor 
graduating seniors who have been negatively impacted by the pandemic and have 
missed out on many social activities that all previous Santa Fe High school 
graduating classes have enjoyed.  These unprecedented twelve months have 
taken a mental toll on the graduating seniors because they have not been able to 
socialize in person with lifelong friends who will now be going their separate ways 
after graduation; and were not given the opportunity to have a homecoming dance, 
senior prom, or able to participate in team sports and performing arts programs. 
These banners will give these special seniors the opportunity to be recognized by 
having their names and key values on the banners that are affixed to light poles 
near the high school.  The banners will also inspire the entire community and will 
be placed on light poles on Orr & Day Road, between Telegraph Road and 
Florence Avenue. 

If implemented, this will be the first year for the project, with the goal to encourage 
students to apply themselves in school. These types of projects reflect the focus 
across the country of encouraging students to be college and career ready. If 
approved, this could be the start of an annual tradition and will instill in younger 
students the incentive to work hard. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There will be a fiscal impact to the City, mainly costs associated with buying the 
banners (many that can be reused in future years) and lights (also that can be 
reused) that will highlight the banners at night;  and the labor costs associated with 
the installation/removal of the lighting and banners.  The cost of banners will be 
$15,503.77, and the lights with the associated costs for labor to install/remove the 

RECOMMENDATION 
Provide direction on the City’s financial support for the Santa Fe High School 
Graduation Banner Project 

ITEM NO. 16



          Page 2 of 2 

       Report Submitted By:  Maribel Garcia, Sr. Management Assistant  
 City Manager’s Office               Date of Report: April 2, 2021 

 

banners/lights is $7,000. Therefore, the project’s total cost is $22,503.77. The 
Whittier Union High School District has agreed to partner with the City concerning 
the project and has committed to fund the project at $7,500. 
 
Attachment(s): 
Invoice from Conceptual Marketing 
Slides of Proposed Banners 

 
 
 Raymond R. Cruz 
 City Manager 
  
 



Conceptual Marketing
PO Box 2524
Santa Fe Springs, CA  90670 US
+1 5625560605
jeff@conceptualmarketing.org
www.conceptualmarketing.org

Estimate

ADDRESS

Mr. Fernando Fernandez
Santa Fe High School ASB
10400 Orr and Day Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA  90670

SHIP TO

Mr. Fernando Fernandez
Santa Fe High School ASB
10400 Orr and Day Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

ESTIMATE # DATE

032421-2 03/24/2021

SALES REP
Jeff

PRODUCT/SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Pole Banners Double Sided Vinyl 
Full Color
UV Rated
30" wide x 84" tall
Hemmed top & Bottom 
Approx - 5 Different Logos

30 155.00 4,650.00T

Banners Picture Opportunity Banner
Full Color
15' wide x 10' tall
Perimeter Grommets
Velcro Along Front Right Edge

1 490.00 490.00T

Banners Annual Attachment for Picture
Opportunity Banner
Full Color
3' wide x 10' tall
Perimeter Grommets
Velcro Along Front Right Edge

1 80.00 80.00T

Banners Senior Names Banner with
Admin Chief
Full Color
18' wide x 10' tall
Perimeter Grommets

1 700.00 700.00T

Banners Vertical Feather Banners
11" tall
Double Sided Imprint
Ground Stake 
Carry Bag

8 165.00 1,320.00T

Masks 3 Ply Adjustable Masks
Reversible with 
2 sided imprint

520 4.89 2,542.80T

Corrugated Signs Congrat's Class of 2021 Sign
Custom Sized Letters, Numbers, Logos & 
Special Characters, etc

1 3,400.00 3,400.00T

Set Up Fee Set Up Fees 1 415.00 415.00T



PRODUCT/SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

11 Set Ups 
8 @ $35 = $280
3 @ $45 = $135

SUBTOTAL 13,597.80
TAX (10.5%) 1,427.77
SHIPPING 478.20
TOTAL $15,503.77

Accepted By Accepted Date















City of Santa Fe Springs 
 City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
Director of Public Works 

PRESENTATIONS 
Proclaiming April 30, 2021, as “National Arbor Day” 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
On April 10, 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture 
that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, which would be called Arbor 
Day. Trees play an integral part of the urban landscape by providing aesthetic and 
environmental benefits to neighborhoods. The City of Santa Fe Springs places great 
value in maintaining and preserving the approximately 7,000 trees that make up the 
City’s urban forest. The Arbor Day Foundation has recognized this investment and 
bestowed upon the City the national designation award of Tree City USA for the 35th 
consecutive year.  

The Arbor Day Foundation is a non-profit, environmental and educational organization 
of nearly one million members, with a mission to inspire people to plant, nurture and 
celebrate the benefits of trees.  The Arbor Day Foundation, in cooperation with the 
National Association of State Foresters, and the United States Department of 
Agriculture Forest Service sponsors the Tree City USA program. 

The Mayor may wish to call upon Noe Negrete, Director of Public Works, to receive 
the proclamation. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment:  
Attachment No. 1:  Proclamation 

RECOMMENDATION 
• Call upon the City Clerk to read the proclamation.  The Mayor will present the 

proclamation to Noe Negrete, Director of Public Works.

ITEM NO. 18A



NATIONAL ARBOR DAY PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of 
Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees; and 

WHEREAS, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of 
more than a million trees in Nebraska; and 

WHEREAS, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and throughout the 
world; and 

WHEREAS, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, 
cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce life-
giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife; and 

WHEREAS, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel 
for our fires; and 

WHEREAS, trees in our City increase property values, enhance the economic vitality 
of business areas, and beautify our community;  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, John Mora, Mayor of the City of 
Santa Fe Springs, on behalf of the City Council, do hereby proclaim April 30, 2021 as 

NATIONAL ARBOR DAY 

in the City of Santa Fe Springs and urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and support 
efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and further encourage all citizens to plant 
trees. 

DATED this 20th day of April, 2021 

________________________________ 
JOHN MORA, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
JANET MARTINEZ, CMC, CITY CLERK 



City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted By:  Janet Martinez, Date of Report: April 1, 2021 
 City Clerk 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

PRESENTATION 
Proclaiming the Month of April 2021, as DMV/Donate Life Month in Santa Fe Springs 

 

BACKGROUND 
In recognition of National Donate Life Month, the California Organ and Tissue Donor 
Registry encourages others to become organ and tissue donors, by registering on-
line, or when they apply for, or renew, their driver’s license or I.D. card. More than 
114,000 individuals nationwide and more than 23,000 Californians are currently on 
the national organ transplant waiting list.  In addition to there being a need for organs 
and tissue donors, the nation is also in urgent need of blood and marrow donors.   

The Mayor may call on the City Clerk to read the proclamation declaring April 2021 
as “DMV/Donate Life Month” in Santa Fe Springs.   

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment: 
1. Letter & Proclamation – DMV/Donate Life California Month

RECOMMENDATION 
• Call upon the City Clerk to read the proclamation.  The Mayor will present the 

proclamation to Ruth Covington, OneLegacy Ambassador.

ITEM NO. 18B



www.OneLegacy.org | www.donateLIFEcalifornia.org/OneLegacy 
Page 1 of 160 

Donate Life Month: April 2021 
OneLegacy Public Education Partnership with the City of Santa Fe Springs 

Since 2005, OneLegacy has requested the support of Southern California civic leaders and municipalities 
to celebrate and encourage the gift of life at the Donate Life Run/Walk. This year, our focus broadens as 
we seek your support in reaching our community through diverse communication strategies.  

The Need: Over 21,000 Californians need a life-saving transplant 

Even though more than 100 people per day received a life-saving transplant in 2020, nearly 20 
die every day still waiting. 
California has only 12% of the nation’s population, but nearly 20% of the nation’s currently-
waiting transplant candidates. 
Only about half of all Californians are registered organ, eye and tissue donors. 
Illnesses that lead to the need for transplant are common. So, education about organ, eye and 
tissue donation should be common too. 
Saying yes to organ, eye and tissue donation is saying yes to LIFE! 

The Request: Help Us Spread the Word to Save Lives 

Celebrate Donate Life Month by sharing information about organ, eye 
and tissue donation with your residents throughout the month of April. 
Include a call to action, encouraging residents to “sign up and save lives!” 
by visiting www.donateLIFEcalifornia.org or your city’s personalized 
eCampaign, a custom page on California’s donor registry website, set up 
to track page views and new life-saving donor registrations garnered 
through your support. 

Using our ready-made tools, you can enhance organ, eye and tissue donation awareness via your… 

Social Media Platforms 
Email Newsletters 
Utility Bill Inserts 

City Website  
DMV/Donate Life Month Proclamation 
And more! 

Getting started is as easy as Copy & Paste! Click here or follow the QR code above to begin: 
https://www.OneLegacy.org/community/civictools.html   

http://www.onelegacy.org/community/civictools.html
http://www.donatelifecalifornia.org/OneLegacy
http://www.donatelifecalifornia.org/
https://www.onelegacy.org/community/civictools.html
https://www.onelegacy.org/community/civictools.html
https://www.onelegacy.org/community/civictools.html


www.OneLegacy.org | www.donateLIFEcalifornia.org/OneLegacy 
Page 2 of 160 

Contact 

OneLegacy Public Education Staff: 
(213) 356-5213
ambassador@onelegacy.org

Your OneLegacy Ambassador 
Ruth Covington 
tapqueen2@yahoo.com 

2021 Virtual Donate Life Run/Walk: Join Us on Saturday, April 24! 

Finally, invite you to join us virtually for the 19th annual Donate Life Run/Walk on 
Saturday, April 24, 2021! As an elected leader in our community, your 
participation sets an important tone for your constituents, and means the world 
to the Donate Life community. 

Visit www.DonateLifeRunWalk.org to register (by March 26 to receive a t-shirt) 
You can join team Civic Officials - http://olf.convio.net/goto/Civic_Officials   

*Complimentary registration to first 30 civic officials to register, use promo code: civic2021 (1 per user)*

Above & Beyond – More Ways to Educate, Inspire, and Save Lives 

Do you have additional ideas for how we can reach our community with this important message? Do 
you have general questions, comments, or concerns? Would you like an educational presentation about 
organ eye and tissue donation for you staff or community group? We want to hear from you! 

To submit events for OneLegacy Consideration, visit https://www.onelegacy.org/community/ 

http://www.onelegacy.org/community/civictools.html
http://www.donatelifecalifornia.org/OneLegacy
http://olf.convio.net/site/TR/Events/General?fr_id=1151&pg=entry
http://olf.convio.net/goto/Civic_Officials
https://www.onelegacy.org/community/


www.OneLegacy.org | www.donateLIFEcalifornia.org/OneLegacy 
Page 3 of 160 

Facts about Donation and Transplantation: Did you know…? 

THE GIFT – One organ donor can save the lives of up to eight (8) people by donating their heart, 
lungs, kidneys, liver, pancreas and small intestines. 

THE GIFT – On average, one tissue donor can enhance the lives of more than 75 people by 
donating their corneas, skin, bones, and heart valves, among others. 

THE NEED – More than 39,000 organ transplants were performed in the U.S. in 2020, which was 
possible through the generosity of deceased and living donors. 

THE NEED – Over 107,000 people are currently waiting for an organ transplant in the U.S.; over 
21,000 in California alone. 

THE NEED – 17 patients die every day while waiting because the organ they needed did not 
become available in time. 

THE NEED – The need for transplants is disproportionately high among minority populations. 
Communities of color often suffer higher incidences of conditions such as high blood pressure or 
diabetes, which can lead to the need for a kidney transplant. 

DONOR REGISTRATION – To register to be an organ, eye and tissue donor Californians can go to 
www.donateLIFEcalifornia.org, or its Spanish counter-part www.doneVIDAcalifornia.org. 

THE FACTS – Patients are fairly matched with a donor based on the severity of their illness, 
body size, tissue type, blood type and other important medical information.  

THE FACTS – Over 39,000 patients have their sight restored every year through cornea 
transplants. 

THE FACTS – Nearly one third of all deceased donors are age 50 or older. People of all ages and 
medical histories should consider themselves potential donors. 

THE FACTS – Every major religion in the United States supports organ, eye and tissue donation 
as one of the highest expressions of compassion and generosity. 

LIVING DONATION - A living donor can provide a kidney or a portion of their liver, lung, pancreas 
or intestine. To explore living donation, visit www.LivingDonationCalifornia.org  

Updated: 2/17/2021 

http://www.onelegacy.org/community/civictools.html
http://www.donatelifecalifornia.org/OneLegacy
http://www.donatelifecalifornia.org/
http://www.donevidacalifornia.org/
http://www.livingdonationcalifornia.org/


www.OneLegacy.org | www.donateLIFEcalifornia.org/OneLegacy 
Page 4 of 160 

DMV/Donate Life Month Proclamation 

City of Santa Fe Springs 

April 2021 

WHEREAS, organ, eye, tissue, marrow and blood donation are life-giving 
acts recognized worldwide as expressions of compassion to those in need; 

WHEREAS, more than 108,000 individuals nationwide and more than 
21,000 in California are currently on the national organ transplant waiting 
list, and on average, 17 people die each day while waiting;  

WHEREAS, the need for donated organs is especially urgent in Hispanic, 
Latino, and African American communities; 

WHEREAS, a single individual’s donation of the heart, lungs, liver, kidneys, 
pancreas and small intestine can save up to eight lives;  

WHEREAS donation of tissue can save and heal the lives of more than 75 others; 

WHEREAS, deceased organ donors saved more than 33,000 lives last year, the most ever; 

WHEREAS any person can register to be an organ, eye and tissue donor regardless of age or medical 
conditions; 

WHEREAS, over seventeen million Californians have signed up with the state-authorized Donate Life 
California Donor Registry to ensure their wishes to be organ, eye and tissue donors are honored; 

WHEREAS, California residents can sign up to be an organ, eye and tissue donor when applying for or 
renewing their driver’s licenses or ID cards at the California Department of Motor Vehicles; 

WHEREAS, California residents can sign up with the Donate Life California Donor Registry online at any 
time by visiting www.donateLIFEcalifornia.org or, for Spanish-speakers, www.doneVIDAcalifornia.org   

WHEREAS, California residents interested in saving a life through living kidney donation may visit 
www.LivingDonationCalifornia.org; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that in recognition of National Donate Life Month, the month of 
April 2021 is hereby proclaimed “DMV/Donate Life Month” in the City of Santa Fe Springs, and in doing 
so we encourage all Californians to check “YES!” online, or when applying for or renewing their driver’s 
license or I.D. card at the DMV.

http://www.onelegacy.org/community/civictools.html
http://www.donatelifecalifornia.org/OneLegacy
http://www.donatelifecalifornia.org/
http://www.donevidacalifornia.org/
http://www.livingdonationcalifornia.org/


City  City Council Meeting April 6, 2021 

Report Submitted by:  Janet Martinez Date of Report:  April 1, 2021 
 City Clerk’s Office 

City of Santa Fe Springs
  

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
Committee                  Vacancies      Councilmember 
Beautification and Historical 1 Mora 
Beautification and Historical 3 Zamora 
Beautification and Historical 1 Sarno 
Beautification and Historical 2 Rodriguez 
Beautification and Historical 1 Trujillo 

Family & Human Svcs 1 Mora 

Heritage Arts 1 Zamora 

Parks & Recreation 3 Zamora 
Parks & Recreation 1 Sarno 
Parks & Recreation 1 Trujillo 

Senior 3 Mora 
Senior 3 Zamora 
Senior 4 Trujillo 

Sister City  5 Zamora 
Sister City 3 Sarno 
Sister City 3 Rodriguez 
Sister City 2 Trujillo 

Youth Leadership Committee 2 Mora 
Youth Leadership Committee 3 Rodriguez 

Applications Received: None. 
Recent Actions: None. 

Raymond R. Cruz 
City Manager 

Attachment(s): 
1. Prospective Members
2. Committee Lists

ITEM NO. 19



Prospective Members for Various Committees/Commissions

Beautification and Historical* (*pending name change)
Phillip Gonzalez

Family & Human Services

Heritage Arts

Personnel Advisory Board

Parks & Recreation
Danielle Pavageau

Planning Commission

Senior Citizens Advisory

Sister City

Traffic Commission

Youth Leadership



*(pending name)

9:30 a.m., Library Community Room
Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 20 Residents appointed by City Council
Council Liaison: Sarno

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Doris Yarwood
Guadalupe Placensia
Irma Huitron
Vacant

Zamora Annette Ramirez
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Sarno Jeannette Lizarraga
Mary Arias
Linda Vallejo
Vacant

Rodriguez Vacant
Sally Gaitan
Mark Scoggins
Vacant

Trujillo Jacqueline Martinez
Kay Gomez
Vacant
Merrie Hathaway

BEAUTIFICATION AND HISTORICAL ADVISORYCOMMITTEE*

Meets the fourth Wednesday of each month



Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 15 Residents Appointed by City Council

Council Liaison: Rodriguez

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Martha Villanueva*
Vacant
Miriam Herrera

Zamora Gaby Garcia
Christina J. Colon
Gilbert Aguirre

Sarno Dolores Duran
Janie Aguirre
Peggy Radoumis

Rodriguez Shamsher Bhandari
Elena Lopez
Hilda Zamora

Trujillo Dolores Romero
Laurie Rios*
Bonnie Fox

Organizational Representatives: Nancy Stowe
(Up to 5) Evelyn Castro-Guillen

Elvia Torres

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

Meets the third Wednesday of the month, except Jun., Sept., and Dec., at 5:45 p.m., 
Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center

5 Social Service Agency Representatives Appointed by the 
Committee

(SPIRITT Family Services)

FAMILY & HUMAN SERVICES ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE



HERITAGE ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 9 Voting Members 

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Maria Salazar-Jaramillo

Zamora Vacant

Sarno William K. Rounds

Rodriguez Francis Carbajal*

Trujillo Laurie Rios*

Vacant
Sally Gaitan
Gabriel Jimenez
Debbie Baker

Council Liaison Annette Rodriguez
Council Alternate Vacant

Ray Cruz
Maricela Balderas
Wayne Morrell

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

Chamber of Commerce

Committee Representatives

Meets the Last Tuesday of the month, except Dec., at 9:00 a.m., at the Gus Velasco 
Neighborhood Center Room 1

6 Non-Voting Members

Family and Human Services Committee
Beautification and Historical Committee
Planning Commission

City Manager
Director of Community Services
Director of Planning 

Council/Staff Representatives



Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 25
Council Liaison: Mora

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Joe Avila
Eddie Barrios
William Logan
Ralph Aranda 

Kurt Hamra

Zamora Gina Hernandez
Blake Carter
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Sarno Kenneth Arnold
Mary Anderson
Jeannette Lizarraga
Vacant
Mark Scoggins

Rodriguez Kayla Perez
Priscilla Rodriguez 
Lisa Garcia
Sylvia Perez
David Diaz-Infante

Trujillo Dolores Romero
Andrea Lopez
Elizabeth Ford
Nancy Krueger
Vacant

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

Meets the First Wednesday of the month, except Jul., Aug., and Dec., 7:00 p.m., 
Town Center Hall, Meeting Room #1
Subcommittee Meets at 6:00 p.m.

PARKS & RECREATION ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE



PERSONNEL ADVISORY BOARD

Membership:

Terms:

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Council Angel Munoz
Ron Biggs

Personnel Advisory Board Neal Welland

Firemen's Association Jim De Silva

Employees' Association Johnny Hernandez

\

Meets Quarterly on an As-Needed Basis

Four Years

5 (2 Appointed by City Council, 1 by Personnel 
Board, 1 by Firemen's Association, 1 by 
Employees' Association)



PLANNING COMMISSION

Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership:

APPOINTED BY NAME

Mora Ken Arnold

Sarno Johnny Hernandez

Rodriguez Francis Carbajal*

Trujillo William K. Rounds

Zamora Gabriel Jimenez

Meets the second Monday of every Month at 4:30 p.m.,                                                       
Council Chambers

5



Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 25
Council Liaison: Sarno

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Paul Nakamura
Astrid Shesterkin
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Zamora Vacant
Elena Lopez Armendariz
Josefina Lara
Vacant
Vacant

Sarno Sally Gaitan
Bonnie Fox
Gilbert Aguirre
Lorena Huitron
Janie Aguirre

Rodriguez Yoko Nakamura
Linda Vallejo
Hilda Zamora
Martha Villanueva*
Nancy Krueger

Trujillo Dolores Duran
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

SENIOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Meets the Second Tuesday of the month, except Jun., Sep., and Dec., at 9:30 a.m.,   
Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center



Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 
Membership: 25
Council Liaison: Mora

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Martha Villanueva*
Doris Yarwood
Laurie Rios*
Peggy Radoumis
Francis Carbajal*

Zamora Vacant
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Sarno Manny Zevallos
Vacant
Jacqueline Martinez
Vacant
Vacant

Rodriguez Jeannette Wolfe
Shamsher Bhandari
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Trujillo Charlotte Zevallos
Andrea Lopez
Vacant
Marcella Obregon
Vacant

*Indicates person currently serves on three committees

SISTER CITY COMMITTEE
Meets the First Monday of every month, except Dec., at 6:45 p.m., Town Center Hall, 
Mtg. Room #1.  If the regular meeting date falls on a holiday, the meeting is held on 
the second Monday of the month.



TRAFFIC COMMISSION

Membership:
Qualifications: 18 Years of age, reside or active in the City 

APPOINTED BY NAME

Mora Bryan Collins

Sarno Johana Coca

Rodriguez Felix Miranda

Trujillo Linda Vallejo

Zamora Christina J. Colon

Meets the Third Thursday of every month, at 6:00 p.m., Council Chambers

5



Membership: 20
Council Liaison: Zamora

APPOINTED BY NAME TERM EXPIRES 
DEC 31, 2022

Mora Kharisma Ruiz
Jilliana Casillas
Vacant
Vacant

Zamora Joseph Casillas
Savanna Aguayo
Valerie Melendez
Christian Zamora

Sarno Abraham Walters
Aaron D. Doss
Valerie Bojorquez
Maya Mercado-Garcia

Rodriguez Jasmine Rodriguez
Vacant
Vacant
Vacant

Trujillo Bernardo Landin
Isaac Aguilar 
Andrew Bojorquez
Alan Avalos 

YOUTH LEADERSHIP COMMITTEE

Qualifications: Ages 13-18, reside in Santa Fe Springs

Meets the First Monday of every month, at 6:30 p.m., Gus Velasco Neighborhood Center


	Agenda
	Item No. 6
	Item No. 7
	Item No. 8A
	Item No. 8B
	Item No. 9
	Item No. 10
	Item No. 11
	Item No. 12
	Item No. 13
	Item No. 14
	Item No. 15
	Item No. 16
	Item No. 18A
	Item No. 18B
	Item No. 19



